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SERGEANT LUGO: PC recording rolling.

SERGEANT SADOWSKY: Cloud recording rolling.

SERGEANT PEREZ: Backup is rolling.

SERGEANT BIONDO: Thank you. Good morning
everyone and welcome to today’s Remote New York City
FY22 Fiscal Budget, Preliminary Budget Committee on
Finance jointly with the Subcommittee on Capital
Budget and the Committee on Contracts.

At this time, would all panelists please turn on
their video. Once again, all panelists please turn
on your video for verification. To minimize any
disruptions, please place all electronic devices to
vibrate or silent mode. If you wish to submit

testimony, we ask you to do so at

testimony@council.nyc.gov. Again, that is
testimony@council.nyc.gov. Thank you for your
cooperation. Speaker and Chairs, we are ready to
begin.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay, good morning and
welcome to today’s hearing of the Committee on
Finance on the Fiscal 2022 Preliminary Budget. I am
Council Member Daniel Dromm and I am the Chair of the
Committee. We are joined by the Subcommittee on the

Capital Budget, Chaired by Council Member Helen
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Rosenthal and by the Committee on Contracts Chaired
by Council Member Ben Kallos. We will hear from the
Office of Management and Budget, the Comptroller, the
Independent Budget Office and the public.

I would like to now introduce our colleagues who
are here with us today. Of course we are joined by
Speaker Johnson, Chair Rosenthal and Kallos, Council
Members Darma Diaz, Grodenchik, Koo, Louis, Matteo,
Chin, Gjonaj, Koslowitz, Rivera, Powers, Ampry-Samuel
and I think that others will be joining us shortly.

I would like to begin with a few brief thank
you’s. First, I would like to thank Council Member
Vanessa Gibson who was the former Chair of the
Subcommittee on the Capital Budget. Vanessa, it was
a pleasure working with you on the Budget over these
past three years. You were great and I really
appreciate all your love and support.

I would also like to welcome Council Member Helen
Rosenthal, the great Helen Rosenthal to the role of
Subcommittee Chair. Helen, I know we will do great
work on this budget this year together.
Congratulations to Helen Rosenthal.

I would also like to give a well-deserved public

thank you to the entire finance division of the City
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Council. Your knowledge and expertise are invaluable
to this Council as a whole and to me as the Finance
Chair. Starting with the Director Latonia McKinney
and to all the Deputy Directors, the Assistant
Director, the Counsel’s Unit Head, Financial Analyst,
Economist and Support staff, thank you, thank you,
thank you. It could not be done without you and you
are my rock and I deeply appreciate everything that
you have done to bolster me and to support me and to
educate me on what finance does over these last three
years.

So, thank you to everyone for the fantastic work
that you do. And of course, I would like to turn it
over to my favorite Speaker, Speaker Corey Johnson
for his remarks now. Corey Johnson.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: Am I unmuted, yes, okay. Good
morning. Thank you Chair Dromm. I want to thank the
Chairs for holding this hearing. Council Member’s
Dromm, Rosenthal and Kallos. Thank you to all of you
and I want to thank the Finance division at the City
Council as well for all of their hard work in
preparing for today’s hearing.

We are here today to open our preliminary budget

hearings for the Fiscal 2022 budget cycle. This is
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also the first budget hearing for the new OMB
Director Jacques Jiha. Jacque, this is certainly not
the easiest moment to step into a role like this, so
I want to thank you for taking this on and I look
forward to working with you.

Before I get into the details in this budget, I
want to take a moment to look beyond the numbers.
Even in the darkest hours of this pandemic, city
government never stops serving New Yorkers and that’s
because of the dedication and hard work of city
employees.

I know it has taken a tremendous toll on them.
They have struggled just like the rest of us with
supporting their families. They have lost loved ones
and many of them have lost their lives to COVID-19
during this pandemic. Thankfully, we are finally
seeing some light at the end of this dark tunnel.

But I hope that throughout these hearings, we
remember that we are not just talking about dollars,
we are talking about policies that impact our workers
and the New Yorkers they serve and that without the
tremendous effort and sacrifices of those city

employees, we would not be on the road to recovery.
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So, I just want to say thank you to all of them.
None of the good work that we are going to talk about
during these budget processes would be possible
without you.

I am happy to say that we are finally on that
road to recovery. This budget isn’t nearly as grim
as I thought it would be. After the CARES Act, the
second stimulus package and now with the Biden
Administration in the White House and Democrats
controlling the house and senate, it looks like we
will be getting some of the help that we need. But I
am also concerned that this budget is going to take
advantage of new federal money to just do the bare
minimum. Yes, the Mayor presented a balanced budget
but there are still some very, very worrying signs.
We are not out of the woods yet. We are seeing
declines in tax collections for every major tax of
the property taxes. And that’s only up because the
assessments are based on pre-COVID values. With next
year, we are in for trouble. Property taxes are set
for the biggest decline since 1998. Worse than after
the great recession or 911, tax revenue projections
for Fiscal 2022 are down by $5.4 billion. OMB is

projecting out year gaps of more than $4 billion.
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So, I know we have got to get through this budget
but we can’t just squeak by here. There are a lot of
questions that I have and the Council has about how
we are even getting to a balanced budget. We need to
know about the labor savings that the Mayor has
discussed. How we will deal with potential cuts from
the state and what happens if the economic recovery
slows. We also need to discuss how we are
prioritizing dollars in this budget for the programs
that will preserve our social safety net to ensure
that our youth, our seniors and working families
receive critical services during these trying times.

And that we are placing not only our economy but
all New Yorkers on the path to recovery. I know we
are seeing some positive signs that the economy might
be rebounding but we have got a long way to go.

Between February and December, we have lost more
than 600,000 jobs. Our unemployment rate is still
over 11 percent and those losses like almost
everything else associated with this pandemic, were
not felt equality. 68 percent of those lost jobs
were held by workers of color. The city has been
through too much for us to just do the bare minimum

here. I don’t want us to just go back to normal, I




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE JOINTLY WITH THE SUBCOMMITTEE
ON CAPITAL BUDGET AND THE COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS 12

want us to build and work towards a new, more
equitable future.

If the senate passes the stimulus bill with
significant funding for the city, we will have an
incredible opportunity. Not just to restore cuts
that have been so devasting to communities across the
city but to get a budget in place where the city
isn’t forced to make some of those difficult
decisions.

So, I look forward to hearing from the
Administration and to getting to work. Again, I want
to thank all of the members of the Council that are
here today and I especially of course again, want to
thank Chairs Dromm, Rosenthal, Kallos and the entire
finance division and I turn it back to you Chair
Dromm.

Thank you very much Mr. Speaker and I want to
thank you personally because you were the first
person about a year ago, I think it was on March 11th
when we were in the members lounge at a democratic
conference to have the foresight to know what was
coming and to understand the seriousness of this

pandemic. And you alerted us all. You alerted the
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city and for that, I think you saved many lives. So,
we are most grateful to you for that.

I want to also announce now that we have been
joined by Council Members Cornegy, Ayala, Lander, Van
Bramer. And now, I will continue with the program,
with the hearing.

The Fiscal 2022 Preliminary Budget totaled $92.3
billion. The financial plan is conservative given
the uncertainty about the length and depth of the
pandemic induced reception. Although the city’s
financial position isn’t as dire as projected last
June, there remains several concerning risks and
unknowns that will impact the Fiscal ’'22 Preliminary
Budget.

First, is the uncertainty of federal stimulus
funding. As the Speaker noted, there is reason to be
hopeful that $5.6 billion could come to the city but
we cannot count our chickens before they hatch.

Second, is the risk of unaccounted for potential
reduction in state aid. The Fiscal 2022 Preliminary
plan does not reflect the proposed cuts in the state
executive budget, which OMB estimates $2.4 billion
across Fiscal ’21 and Fiscal ’"22. Most of the cuts

or $1.9 billion over those two years, would hit the
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Department of Education just when our schools and our
students need more funding than ever to overcome the
challenges imposed by COVID-19 and remote learning.
Support for public health programs and social
services would drop by another $577.4 million.

Third, is the risk that the Administration has
underfunded several areas of the budget. These
include spending projections for pandemic related
costs. The NYPD’s overtime and the DOE Special
Education and pupil transportation spending. The
ongoing cost associated with busing and special
education should be funded across the financial plan.

And lastly, is the fact that the Preliminary
Budget doesn’t include any of the Council’s Fiscal
2022 discretionary funding or any one-time paid
restorations and programmatic additions included in
Fiscal "21 at the Council’s urging.

Altogether, that adds up to another approximately
$730.5 million. As a result of all of these risks
and uncertainties, there is clearly a lot for the
Administration to address in the Executive Budget and
we look forward to hearing from the OMB today about

how they plan to get it done.
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At this time, I would now like to hand it over to
Chair Rosenthal for her remarks. Chair Rosenthal.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Chair Rosenthal, you are mute.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Okay, am in unmuted now?

SERGEANT AT ARMS: You are good now.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Okay, great, thanks so
much. Thank you Chair Dromm and thank you very much
for the kind words. I am Council Member Helen
Rosenthal, Chair of the Subcommittee on the Capital
Budget.

When we talk about the need to make strategic
investments in these uncertain times. We are of
course speaking about not only the city’s expense
budget but its long term investment in capital
infrastructure. The streets, sewers, parks,
libraries and schools that will both 1ift the city’s
economic recovery and sustain its future.

Less than two weeks ago, my Subcommittee held a
hearing with the Department of Design and
Construction on the challenges of restarting the
capital process in light of COVID-19. We learned
that the city’s process to build out this critical
infrastructure has largely been stalled since the

onset of the pandemic. And I will be curious to know
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from the Budget Director when the certificates to
proceed will really get back to flowing as we need
them to be. Because for the Preliminary Capital
Commitment Plan for Fiscal Year 2022, it only
reflects partially the current reality.

The plan shows significant movement of plan
commitments from Fiscal Year 23 and 24 into the
last year of the plan but it shows small increase in
the current year in Fiscal ’"22. While I am hopeful
that the city will be able to execute its capital
plan at pre-COVID levels as soon as possible, Fiscal
Year 2021 $17 billion plan maybe too ambitious,
especially because we have learned from many agencies
that their projects are simply being held up at OMB.

I am anxious to hear how OMB intends to help
agencies achieve at this level. The city has
steadily increased its capital commitments over the
last several years reaching a high water mark of
$12.6 billion in Fiscal Year '19. 1In Fiscal Year
2020, commitments were on pace to exceed this amount
when the pandemic hit causing commitments to stall at
$8.1 billion. Which is very respectable given all

things considered and the Governor’s pause but in the
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first half of Fiscal Year 2021, actual commitments
were Jjust at $2.4 billion through December.

While this pandemics impact has been devastating,
the progress that the city has made in executing its
capital plan over the last few years is equally
encouraging. With the city’s financial health on the
mend and plans to ramp up the capital process
beginning to take shape, the challenge will be how to
restart the capital pipeline in the most efficient
and effective way possible.

As the new Chair of the Subcommittee on Capital
Budget, I look forward to working with this
Administration to make it happen. I am so excited to
hear about OMB’s strategy for the capital restart and
how it will provide guidance in technical assistance
to agencies navigating these challenges.

Thank you and with that, I will turn it back to
Chair Dromm.

CHATRPERSON DROMM: Thank you very much. I would
like to say that we have also been joined by Council
Members Miller, Gibson and let me just double check
and Miller as well. Thank you very much for joining
us and thank you Chair Rosenthal for your remarks. I

would now like to turn i1t over to Chair Ben Kallos
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for his remarks and thank you Ben for joining us and
lending us your expertise on Contracts.

CHAIRPERSON KALLOS: Thank you. Good morning, I
am Ben Kallos and it is my honor to join Speaker
Corey Johnson who saved countless lives by being the
first to sound alarms when the pandemic began. My
good friend and Finance Chair Danny Dromm as well as
my predecessor on the Contracts Committee Chair Helen
Rosenthal at this virtual hearing. The Fiscal 2022
Preliminary Budget at the current Chair of the
Contracts Committee.

For those of you who are watching online or on
TV, please feel free to make your voice heard in this
hearing by Tweeting me, that’s at Ben Kallos.

As Chair of Contracts, I am interested in
correcting the drastic cuts made to the Indirect Cost
Rate Funding Initiative. This initiative debuted in
late 2019 as a joint accomplishment led by Chair
Rosenthal, Speaker Johnson, the City Council and the
Administration. However, cuts to the initiative in
2020 are compounding problems for our nonprofits
providing human services on the frontlines and we are

already hurting as a result of the pandemic.
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While the pandemic has cost our city billions, we
can’t balance our budget on the backs of our neediest
New Yorkers. I look forward to discussing proposed
contracts budget, the proposed reduction to the
city’s workforce and the proposed three to one hiring
freeze. I understand that there needs to be savings
on the city’s budget, especially at this critical
point and time but I question the actual value of
these labor savings will provide and I am concerned
about positions being outsourced through contracted
consultants.

Before we begin, I would like to take a moment to
thank the Contracts Committee Staff Finance Unit Head
John Russell, Finance Analyst Frank Scarno,
Legislative Counsel Josh Kingsley and Policy Analyst
Leah Scrupiac[SP?] for all their hard work.

I will now turn it back to Chair Dromm. Thank
you.

CHATRPERSON DROMM: Thank you Chair Kallos and I
wanted to say that we have also been joined by
Council Member Moya.

So, now we will hear from OMB’s Budget Director
Jacques Jiha and the First Deputy Director Ken

Godiner after they are sworn in by Counsel. I will
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now turn it over to the Committee Counsel for some
procedural announcements and to swear in the
witnesses. Counsel.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Thank you Chair Dromm. My
name 1s Stephanie Ruiz and I am Counsel to the New
York City’s Council Committee on Finance. Before we
begin, I want to remind everyone that you will be on
mute until you are recognized to speak. At which
time, you will be unmuted by the Zoom host.

If you mute yourself after you have ben unmuted,
you will need to be unmuted again by the host. I
will now administer the affirmation and our witnesses
will be called on to affirm at the end.

Do you affirm that your testimony will be
truthful to the best of your knowledge, information
and belief? Director Jihav?

JACQUES JIHA: Yes, I do.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Thank you and Deputy Director
Godiner?

KEN GODINER: I do.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Thank you. Director Jiha,
you may begin when ready.

JACQUES JIHA: Well, thank you. Thank you,

Speaker Johnson, Chairs Dromm and Kallos and
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Subcommittee Chair Rosenthal and members of the
Finance Committee for the opportunity to testify
today concerning the Fiscal Year 2022 Preliminary
Budget.

My name is Jacques Jiha and I am the Director of
the New York City’s Mayor’s Office of Management and
Budget. I am joined today by OMB First Deputy
Director, Kenneth Godiner. Before I discuss the
budget, I want to thank you for your partnership in
renewing the City’s tax lien sale. None of us wanted
to add to the challenges that homeowners have faced
over the last year. The bill supported by the
Administration and passed by the Council created a
new, fairer program for property owners and at the
same time, ensures that we are able to collect
revenues that support vital services citywide.

We look forward to working with you throughout
the year on many more issues that reflect our shared
goals, which include rebuilding this city and forging
a recovery for all of us. In crafting this
Preliminary Budget, we have remained focused on
strong fiscal management. This is critical in light
of the fiscal impact of COVID-19 and State cuts and

cost shifts.
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First, I would like to discuss the state of our
economy and its impact on the budget. We have
recovered nearly one-third of the Jjobs lost since we
became the epicenter of the pandemic. This is
slightly faster than we projected in November.
However, the City’s real estate markets are still
down. Residential sales and rental prices have
softened substantially.

On the commercial side, demand for office space
was weak last year, with shrinking new leasing
volume. Tourism, one of the New York City’s greatest
assets, remained anemic. We hosted two-thirds fewer
visitors last year, which drove hotel occupancy down
by half. Growth will be weak this quarter because of
the pandemic’s second wave. However, we expect the
economy will gradually pick up as vaccination
coverage expands, the second wave eases, COVID
restrictions are carefully lifted and the economy
benefits from new federal stimulus that will put
money directly into New Yorkers’ hands. So, what
does this mean for the City’s budget?

Because the value of commercial and rental
properties has decreased, we lowered the Fiscal Year

2022 property tax forecast by $2.5 billion. This
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reduction drove the overall tax revenue forecast for
that year down by $1.5 billion and substantially
increased the budget gap from $3.8 billion in
November to over $5.0 billion in January.

To close the newly widened budget gap, we leaned
aggressively into our savings program and balanced
the Fiscal Year 2022 Preliminary Budget without
deficit borrowing or assuming fiscal stimulus. In
the Preliminary Budget we achieved more than $2.0
billion in savings across Fiscal Years 2021 and 2022,
which includes more than $1 billion in PEG savings.
Nearly $600 million will recur annually beginning in
Fiscal Year 2023. This brings total savings across
the two fiscal years to $3.6 billion since June.

As part of our continuing effort to reduce
headcount, our savings plan includes a strict hiring
and attrition management initiative. Going forward,
agencies can only add a new employee after three step
down. This will reduce planned headcount by 5,000 in
Fiscal Year 2022, which saves nearly $350 million
over two fiscal years. 1In total, we have taken
actions since January 2020 that reduced next fiscal
year’s headcount by 12,000. On top of our efforts,

the City’s Actuary has proposed a package of changes
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to strengthen the pension system that will save $730
million over two years. We will remain focused on
savings throughout the budget process, as it is
critical to our fiscal recovery.

However, cuts alone are not enough. It is
important to make strategic investments that will
strengthen the economy and help bring the city back.
We must grow ourselves out of this crisis. That is
why in the Preliminary Budget we have deepened our
commitment to the test and trace program and the New
York City Vaccine For All campaign, which are
essential to our recovery. We have increased social
and emotional learning programming for students who
need the help. We have funded 70,000 Summer Youth
Employment slots to offer opportunities for young
adults. We have established the Learning Bridges
program which provides free child care and learning
options for young students on days they are scheduled
for remote learning. We have prevented hunger with
GetFood NYC. We have expanded Wi-Fi in shelters to
promote broadband equity and made sure that the 311
call service, which has helped millions of New
Yorkers navigate this crisis, continues to operate

efficiently.
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These initiatives are included within the new
agency spending of $885 million over Fiscal Years
2021 and 2022. DNow, I would like to discuss capital
planning and the status of the City’s infrastructure
projects. Every other fiscal year, we outline our
long-term capital outlook. The Fiscal Year 2022
Preliminary Ten-Year Capital Strategy is $118.8
billion. This reflects a nearly two percent increase
over the 2020 Ten-Year Capital Strategy. The bulk of
the investments are in education, environmental
protection, transportation and housing. They include:
building and improving school facilities; Improving
wastewater treatment facilities and sewage control
measures; Expanding resilient infrastructure that
addresses the impacts and risks of climate change;
Enhancing pedestrian and cyclist safety; Improving
roadways and traffic flow; Building and preserving
record levels of affordable housing and investing in
repairs and improvements to NYCHA developments.

To improve capital planning and smooth project
funding we redistributed $3.8 billion in projects to
out years of the plan. We also continue to make sure
that the capital plan is affordable by cautiously

estimating debt service and making sure it does not




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE JOINTLY WITH THE SUBCOMMITTEE
ON CAPITAL BUDGET AND THE COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS 26

exceed 15 percent of the City’s tax revenue, a
hallmark for responsible debt financing.

Restarting capital projects, like vaccinations,
is essential to our recovery. On January 25th, the
Administration lifted capital restart restrictions
that were imposed in conjunction with the Governor’s
Pause Order and in response to concerns about cash
flow and access to financial markets. We have
authorized a gradual return to the pre-COVID capital
approval process that will be completed by the end of
this month.

In the interest of transparency, my team has
prepared a list of projects and restart dates to
share with the Council. Because of cautious and
prudent planning, expanding vaccine access, 1investing
in the safe reopening of schools and the economy and
restarting the capital process, we can now see the
light at the end of the tunnel. However, strong
headwinds from Albany threaten our progress. The
Governor presented his Executive Budget five days
after we released our January Financial Plan. As in
previous years, i1t contains substantial cuts and
shifts to education and programs that serve some of

the most vulnerable New Yorkers.
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You may remember last year when the State
shortchanged New York City of more than $700 million
in Education Aid. It is happening again. The
State’s proposed budget supplants $800 million of the
$2.15 billion in federal aid that was set aside for
New York City in the second stimulus package last
December.

This leaves us with substantially less education
funding than we expected and need. This aid would
help keep schools open, increase academic opportunity
across the five boroughs, restore critical programs
and more. Like the Mayor said in his recent
appearance before the State legislature, our
students, their families and educators have
experienced a challenging year like no other in the
city’s history. Our one million school children
deserve better. The State budget also makes more
than $600 million in cuts and cost shifts to our
financial plan over Fiscal Years 2021 and 2022. This
includes shifting approximately $280 million in
mandated charter school costs to New York City. And
even though we are just in the very beginning stages
of a recovery, the State wants to cut over $50

million from core public health services in Fiscal
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Year 2022, which is less than four months away. This
includes reducing our Article 6 Public Health aid
reimbursement level by 50 percent. We will lose $35
million that could be invested in school-based health
centers, protect New Yorkers from outbreaks of
contagious disease and more. Programs funded through
other sources suffer too. Support was reduced for
mental healthcare and the Nurse Family Partnership,
which provides care and assistance to first-time
mothers.

Social Service programs were not spared either.
The proposed budget cuts more than $70 million over
two years from domestic violence services, resources
for youth in foster care, shelter operations,
protection for seniors and other vital programs. On
top of cuts to our budget that I just discussed, the
State Executive Budget threatens to slash nearly $500
million from the City’s Health + Hospitals system
across Fiscal Years 2021 and 2022.

I want to emphasize that the State wants to cut
resources in the midst of the pandemic from a
hospital system that has led the fight to save lives
and protect New Yorkers from COVID-19 since last

Spring. As the Mayor recently highlighted for the
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legislature, these cuts could mean closing 19 H+H
clinics, which treat 140,000 patients a year and
losing 900 doctors and nurses, resulting in longer
wait times for patients. We will work with our
partners in the legislature to fight all cuts that
hurt New Yorkers, especially the most vulnerable. I
also want to thank the Speaker and the Council for
your help in opposing State supplantation.

While we have faced an avalanche of challenges
over the last year because of COVID-19 and the State
has put roadblocks in our path, there is some good
news from Washington, D.C. For months we have been
clear that the federal government must provide a
stimulus that makes up for the revenues we have lost.
Without additional help we would have to make truly
awful choices, including cuts to vital programs.

Now, in light of new leadership in the Senate and
the White House, we are optimistic that Congress will
pass a new stimulus package that includes $350
billion in relief for states and localities, in
addition to funding for other programs and needs.

And thanks to the tireless advocacy of Senator
Schumer and others in the New York congressional

delegation, FEMA announced in January that it will
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increase its reimbursement rate to 100 percent of
eligible costs. This puts more than $1 billion in the
city’s coffers. While this is a very welcome change,
nearly $700 million of the $6.2 billion we have spent
to date on COVID relief still may not be eligible for
reimbursement. These costs will be paid from the
City’s resources.

Though I have finished on a somewhat positive
note, there are good reasons to remain concerned. We
balanced the Preliminary Budget despite unprecedented
economic disruption and diminished revenues. Looking
forward, we face billions of dollars in budget cuts
and shifts from the State and we are still the midst
of an unprecedented health and fiscal crisis.

However, we firmly believe New York City will
recover faster than many people expect as social
distancing requirements ease, as the stimulus impacts
are felt and as consumers unleash pent up demand. As
this happens, workers will return to their offices,
Broadway shows will sell out again, tourism will
flourish and hotels will fill with guests. This is a
resilient city and we will be back better and

stronger than before.
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Thank you again for the opportunity to testify
today.

CHATRPERSON DROMM: Thank you Director Jiha.
Before we go to the Speaker for questions, let me
announce that we have been joined by Council Members
Barron, Cumbo and Riley. Mr. Speaker.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: Thank you Mr. Chair. Thank you
Director Jiha. At the end of your testimony Jjust
now, you mentioned the President and congresses a
$1.9 trillion stimulus package and as you said, the
package includes a $350 billion in aid to state and
local governments. Majority Leader Schumer’s office
estimates that roughly $12.7 billion of that $350
billion will flow to the state with $5.6 million
separately in direct aid to New York City.

Now, hopefully it gets through the senate without
any changes or cuts to local aid but assuming that it
goes through, what is our budget strategy if that is
delayed or spread out over two or three years? And I
want to know, does your economic or tax forecast
include the impact of the stimulus package?

JACQUES JIHA: The Preliminary Budget as you
know, is balanced without any assumption of federal

aid. Okay and so, we are fortunate, so it’s
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basically what you would call the worst case scenario
but we manage to balance it without any aid from the
federal government.

So, uh, if there is no aid coming from the
federal government, we will continue to do what we
have been doing which is continue aggressive savings
programs basically, we have as much as possible to
make sure that the city’s budget is balanced. But if
on the other hand, we are fortunate enough to receive
the aid, we are basically just beginning to phase of
the planning process for the Executive Budget. We
haven’t made a decision one way or another and I am
assuming as part of a budget negotiation and at least
those allocation decisions, we will definitely work
with the Council to make the best decisions that I
believe would be in the best interest of the city in
the long run.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: But my question Director Jiha
is assuming we get that $5.6 billion, which it looks
pretty likely we are going to get some amount close
to that. Do you have any sense at this point, you
are Deputy Director Godiner on if we should be

spreading that aid out over multiple fiscal years or
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using it all on a single fiscal year this upcoming
fiscal year?

JACQUES JIHA: As I said, you know, we have not
made any decisions. We are you know in the pending
phase and we have not received anything at this point
and time, so we don’t know for sure. But as I said,
any budget allocation decisions will be made as we
negotiate the budget and at that point and time we
will decide in terms of what to do and what to do
with the resources that we have and places to
allocate those resources that we have. But at this
point and time, we have not made a decision one way
or another. This is the beginning phase of the
planning process for the Executive Budget.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: The reason why I am asking is
of course the — and I don’t think it was mentioned in
your opening testimony here today but the outyear
gaps that we are seeing are very, very significant.
One of the things that concerns me the most about
this budget is that we are staring down serious,
serious gaps in the outyears and there is still a
tremendous amount of uncertainty about our economy
but the budget proposal that we are seeing it seems

to be pretty short sided. And what I mean by that is
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we are pulling from our reserves still, promising
labor savings, reducing debt service costs and hoping
that the feds come through. I hope they come through
as well but what I don’t really think that we are
seeing are serious efforts at identifying
efficiencies or long term ways to reduce costs. And
I would love it if we got new tax revenue streams but
I don’t think that we can bank on that right now.

So, I don’t want us to be in a situation in a
year or two where social safety net programs and
essential services like trash pickup are on the
chopping block again. So, my first gquestion in
following that, do you have any updates on the labor
savings that was identified by the administration and
that the Mayor had promised?

JACQUES JIHA: Well, I mean, we have always
focused on achieving both immediate and recurring
savings.

I mean, this is the plan that we presented to you
in the Preliminary Budget containing $1.3 billion.
Okay, impact savings over two years. We have a rigid
three for one attrition hiring program that allows us
to reduce headcount without resorting to layoff and

this by itself would reduce headcount by 5,000 and it
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will produce savings of about $350 million over the
next two years.

So, we are never shy in terms of making tough
decisions with respect to savings. We continue to
look for savings but as you know, any savings program
that you see, any savings program that you
implemented, has to be implemented gradually.
Otherwise it could prove counterproductive. We
cannot make all the necessary adjustments all at
once. It’s a process. It’s a process. We have to
give agencies a little time to address the operations
to the new budgetary concerns that otherwise they
could end up making disruptive cuts to vital
services, which would be counterproductive through
the recovery.

So again, to process, we will continue to add
savings in the Executive Budget and in the Adopted
Budget. We will continue to always looking for
savings and working every day with all the agencies
to make sure that we could identify savings. So, we
are going to have a savings program as part of the
Executive Budget and also as part of the Adopted

Budget.
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SPEAKER JOHNSON: And do you have any updates on
the labor savings that the Mayor and —

JACQUES JIHA: We continue to work with the Labor
Unions to identify savings and as I said, as we go
forward, we will make a new announcement as we
schedule with the labor unions with respect to a
savings that we could identify.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: I mean, that’s seems pretty
amorphous and we are going to need more specific
information about that moving forward.

JACQUES JIHA: Of course.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: As I said before, we are
staring down some very significant budget gaps in the
next few years, not just this year. Over $4 billion
a year through Fiscal Year 2025 and now you are
calling for us to draw down our reserves. Sorry, I
am having allergies. And now you are calling for us
to draw down our reserves even more to close the gap
this year.

I'd rather be putting more back in. Do you think
it’s a responsible state to leave the budget in,
given that we are seeing so large of outyear gaps?

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, again listen, we have worked

in the past. The Council and the Administration
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basically to build up a very strong reserve, rapid
reserve that we the 12 of us at the Administration
and the Council that worked together to create, to
build.

So, it is as part of the strategy. If we have
enough resources and when it comes time to make
discretionary allocation to reserve if necessary, we
will do so.

So, we understand your concern. We see the long
term outlook. We see all the risks out there and we
also know, fully aware of the gaps that we have and
that we basically expanded because of what have been
with the property tax revenues. So, we are fully
aware of the challenges and as I said, if needed, as
part of the budget negotiation process we will
discuss and if we have resources and enough
resources, because at the end of the day, right now,
the budget that we created was a budget created in
the worst case scenario. The budget assumes no
federal aid whatsoever.

And so, therefore, we have to tighten our belt
okay and use all the resources at our disposal to
graft this budget. But if we happen to be lucky

enough to — fortunate enough to receive significant
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federal assistance, we will definitely work with the
Council as part of the budget allocation to see if
you know, when necessary, when necessary to add to
the reserves.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: I mean thank you Director Jiha
but you know, it’s sort of a given that you will work
with us because you know, we are the ones that have
to adopt the budget and vote on the budget.

JACQUES JIHA: Of course, of course.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: What I am trying to understand
here today is what you’re thinking and strategy is on
managing these very significant outyear gaps because
even after this Mayor and this Council is gone, we
want to make sure that we are leaving the city in
good hands for a future mayor and a future council
and $4 billion a year in outyear gaps through Fiscal
2025 seems extraordinary alarming and concerning.
Because we don’t know if additional federal aid will
come in sizable ways after this $1.9 trillion plan.

So, could you talk a little bit about how OMB
right now is thinking through different scenarios of
managing these outyear gaps beyond the upcoming

fiscal year?
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JACQUES JIHA: Uhm, one of the things that you
have to realize is how aggressive okay? This is in
the preliminary budget that we presented, was a very
extremely aggressive $1.2 billion PEG. We will
continue to have a PEG program in the outyears and we
will continue again as I said, to adhere to the three
for one attrition policy that we have in place to
make sure that we bring the headcount down.

But more importantly, from my perspective, what
we are currently doing right now is basically looking
at every aspect of the city’s operation, every
agency, look at the operations. Okay, to see where
the operations can be restructured, okay? But these
are things that can only happen in a long while. You
cannot do these things in the short term.

We are looking at every single agency operations,
see what aspect of the operations can be
restructured. How can we do things better? So, we
could basically try to generate as much saving as
possible from the operations of the agencies.

But again, there is some of the things that we
are going to do but I don’t know Ken, do you want to

add some to what I just said?
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KEN GODINER: Yeah, I think we have had a program
of continuous savings. We are not going to stop
looking for savings whether or not we get the federal
aid. Obviously, that’s the way we are going to
manage, bring those outyear gaps down, is through
finding recurring savings. We have done that in the
last two plans. We will continue doing that.
Obviously looking for efficiencies and ways to find
savings that don’t impact services.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: Okay, so I mean, hopefully the
Vaccine Distribution Program continues to ramp up and
we get closer to more of a state of normal over the
summer as more and more New Yorkers get vaccinated
but there is still a lot of uncertainty about how we
are going to recover as a city.

I want to ask, in doing your economic and tax
revenue forecasting, have you made any assumptions
about the pace of private sector officer workers
returning to commercial spaces or central business
districts?

JACQUES JIHA: Well, our forecast simply is — a
vaccination is from our perspective is an essential
aspect of the recovery program. And that’s the

reason why we have been extra aggressive with the
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vaccination campaign because that’s the only way you
could make employees feel comfortable. That it is
safe to come back to the office.

Right now, our forecast for the year is we are
looking at employees, like the Mayor has indicated,
we expect employees to come back to the office. Our
own city office to set an example. Sometimes in May
and so, it’s part of the same and as employees begin
to come back to the office, we expect the economy to
begin to pick up and this is where we — the forecast
is about 3.1 percent this year.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: Director —

JACQUES JIHA: About 4.6 percent in 21 and we
expect the economy to accelerate to about 5.8 percent
in '22. So, all together we are looking at you know,
to add about 517,000 jobs by the end of ’'22.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: Director, the reason why I am
asking that about the pace of private sector office
workers returning to commercial buildings and central
business districts is because if we end up seeing a
significant portion of workers continuing to
telecommute, do we have any estimates on how that
will impact our revenue forecast? And what I mean by

that is, are we thinking about secondary impacts in
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our forecasting because if we have a good portion of
employees for midtown for example that continue to
telecommute, that could be devasting to a whole
ecosystem of businesses that exists because of those
workers. What I am trying to understand is, is OMB
looking at secondary impacts or models? Looking at
these type of things on what it will do to our tax
base. These are the things I am trying to
understand.

JACQUES JIHA: Yes, of course we do. But as I
said, you know, it’s until and unless employees feel
comfortable about — feel safe about coming back to
the office, it’s something that it’s unlikely to
happen. That’s the reason why as I said, we are as
aggressive as we are with the vaccination campaign
and also with the Mayor’s taking the lead in bringing
city employees back to the office in May, because you
have to set the example. You have to lead by example
and as we are going to see, as more folks are
included and then you are going to have, you are
seeing people coming back to the office, coming back
to New York and as they come back to New York, you
expect not only to see income tax, sales tax all of

these things pick up but you would also begin to see
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property, commercial property, okay, value of
commercial property begin in New York City.

So, again, from our perspective is as I said, we
are looking at the economy. We see the economy
picking up in 2021 and it is going to get stronger in
2022 because as I said, we are looking at about 4.6
percent worth in ’21 because assume the economy began
to recover. You also have the stimulus coming from
Washington. So, you have all these things, all these
things are going to add at some point. That’s the
reason why I said New York will be begin to recover
faster than most people anticipated. Because of the
impact of the vaccine, the stimulus, okay and as
people begin to come back, have the confidence to
come back to the office. From our perspective, the
city is going to recover much faster than we
anticipate and at this point and time our focus is
more or less conservative okay, because we anticipate
together about 517,000 more jobs by the end of 2022.
But with these additional jobs, I am expecting tax
revenue to begin to pick up, property tax because as
folks come back to the office, as people come back, I
am expecting the sales to begin to pick up again,

restaurants begin to pick up as people come back to
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work on a day to day basis in the business districts
in New York City.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: But just lastly, do we have —
are we incorporating these things into our models?
The questions that I have?

JACQUES JIHA: Yes, into the models. Of course
the distance I incorporated into our models, yes.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: Okay, a couple more quick
questions and then there is a lot of members that are
here. Before COVID hit, we had over 65 million
visitors to the city a year. It was enormously
important to our economy, our hotels, our nightlife,
our restaurants, Broadway. I don’t see any of them
fully recovering back without a major resurgence in
tourism. Do you have any forecast on when we expect
to see anything close to pre-pandemic levels on
tourism and are you guys working with NYC and Company
on a plan to get us there more quickly?

JACQUES JIHA: Yes, you know, as we — as I said,
we have been working with NYC and Company and NYC and
Company, they published a road map for recovery,
basically outlining what they expect to be — the
strategy basically is the same as ours, which is

basically based on the containment of the virus.
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You know, and then uh, you know see how many
restrictions are lifted in here in New York and also
in the source markets. So, there core focus right
now i1is on what they call a staycations. You know,
spending by local in supports of business sectors but
they also expect to make through ramp up, the
promotions in key visitors markets. Okay, as
conditions improve. In particular, they are looking
to invest in the second half in marketing to attract
tourism particularly in the second half of ’21.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: Do you have any forecast on
when we expect to see anything close to pre-pandemic
levels of tourism?

JACQUES JIHA: Well, I think they are looking at
it I think sometimes around 2025. That’s in New York
and NYC and Company but again, as I said, from my
perspective I think we will pick up faster than we
anticipated because again as I said, once the
troubling public feel that it is safe to come to New
York City and you know, without aggressive
vaccination campaign, I think people will begin to
come to New York City. Okay, so I am not — I think
the 2025, I think from my perspective is it would be

too conservative.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE JOINTLY WITH THE SUBCOMMITTEE
ON CAPITAL BUDGET AND THE COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS 46

SPEAKER JOHNSON: Okay, I am going to just end
with sort of a big picture question.

This past year as you know has been absolutely
devasting for us as a city, for the country
economically, socially, physically, emotionally,
spiritually and I don’t think we have really begun to
understand the long impacts that the last year has
had on all of us collectively. And how we will need
to support students coming back in the fall after a
year and a half of interrupted education, how to deal
with the mental health crisis that have been brewing.
How to support the families that lost breadwinners.
How to make up for the economic losses of women who
had to leave the workplace and many of whom became
care givers. How to care for New Yorkers with long
term health impacts from COVID. How to handle the
end of the eviction moratorium. Those are just some
of the big, big issues that we continue to grapple
with as a city and so, I would like to just end with
my questions, is how do you think this budget starts
to prepare us for a post COVID world? What is
different about our approach to a COVID crisis budget
versus a COVID recovery budget and how we are

adjusting our thinking about these things.
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We were in sort of the crisis mode last year
during the budget you know when the pandemic was
hitting, now we are going into a COVID recovery
budget and all those issues that I just outlined, how
do you feel like this budget really responds to that
and is taking you know, those set of things that I
mentioned into how we are thinking about planning as
a city with our tax dollars?

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, I mean, as I indicated
earlier in my testimony, and these I believe we have
— it’s not a budget that we could only — we had made
some significant from our perspective. We have
deepened our commitment to the best interest program
and the New York City wvaccine.

We have increased some significant — we made some
significant investment. We have increased social and
emotional learning programs for students. We need
help okay. We have also funded Summer Youth Program.
We have established a Learning Bridges Program would
provide free childcare and learning options for young
students when they are scheduled for remote learning.

Again, we will continue to make some serious
investment but as I said, we are constrained. We are

also constrained by the fact that we have limited
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resources in that particular preliminary budget.
Because it was a budget okay, we know we had to make
some significant cuts okay, because it was a budget
that was crafted okay in the midst of a pandemic,
okay. We had very limited resources, now we are
coming out of it.

Okay, so again, as we move into the executive
budget, as we begin to plan okay for the executive
budget and with the hope of getting more resources
from the federal government, we will have more
flexibility, more latitude okay to begin to plan for
the post-COVID era. Where we begin to set how it is
to set New York City in the direction that we believe
it deserves.

SPEAKER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you Director Jiha.
If there is a second round, I will come back. I want
to turn it back to Chair Dromm.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay, thank you very much Mr.
Speaker for your questions. I have some questions
now uhm to the Director and then we are going to be
followed by Council Member Rosenthal and Kallos.

The Preliminary plan imposes a hiring and
attrition management program that says for every one

employee hired, there must be three employees lost.
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I know the Speaker and you begin to talk a little bit
about that but let’s talk about that a little bit
more in depth.

In Fiscal 2022, the plan baselines this reduction
at 4,937 positions but does not break it down by
agency. So, how did you get to this exact number and
why don’t you break it down by agency in the plan and
can the agency detail be provided to the Council?

JACQUES JIHA: This is currently being managed
centrally okay and the reason we are doing this is
because we wanted to have as much flexibility as
possible when we are dealing with agencies. You
know, we are still in the midst of a pandemic, so we
must be very nimble if we have to give some agencies
some leeway 1n case there is an emergency. For that
reason why it has been centrally.

With respect to sharing information, we will
share information with the Council as we move closer
to Fiscal Year ’'22. But we must also remember that
the system is built for maximum flexibility and
therefore, we may not have exact data, okay by
agency. Again, as I said, we have a target okay. We
centrally have been managing that target. Okay,

whatever an agency, we remove resources to that
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agency okay, but we don’t know for sure at this point
and time but as we move closer okay to 2022, we will
have more information and we could provide
information to the Council by agencies or we could
have a sense of the headcount reduction by the
different agencies.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Will you share those targets
with us?

JACQUES JIHA: Yes, as I said, as we move closer
to Fiscal Year ’22.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: So, these Commissioners now
will have more discretion from what I am
understanding you are saying to avoid service
reductions, 1is that correct?

JACQUES JIHA: Yes, we are working with the
agencies, so to minimize as much as possible in the
service disruption test.

CHATRPERSON DROMM: Okay and what about — what
agencies are exempt from the plan?

JACQUES JIHA: Uh, currently it’s uniformed
teachers and any positions that basically we need to
help safety as well as direct revenue generating

positions.
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CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay, so out of the total
city headcount, how many positions are subject to the
three to one hiring plan?

JACQUES JIHA: All civilian mayoral agencies are
subject for it except for uniform and teachers and as
I said, any positions related to health and safety
and also revenue generation.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: So, every other position is
subject to it?

JACQUES JIHA: Every single position except you
know, as I said.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay, now I would like to
just talk a little bit about special education and
the Carter cases. The largest new need in the
preliminary plan is $220 million for DOE’s budget
from Carter cases, bringing the total Fiscal 2021
budget up to $625.6 million. This is well below the
$710 million the department spent on Carter cases in
Fiscal "20 but well above the Fiscal 2022 proposed
budget of $445.7 million.

In this area, we chronically see both
overspending and underbudgeting. So, what
collaboration exists between OMB and DOE to mitigate

the end of budgeting for Carter cases and have you
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worked with DOE to assess that the special education
budget is adequate?

I know that this has both good and bad
implications. I mean, 1in one sense we want to just
see Carter case you know, worked out so that parents
didn’t have to wait so long for the service to be
provided but on the other hand, of course we would
like to see more of these services be provided in
house where we wouldn’t have to spend, maybe we
wouldn’t have to spend quite as much money.

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, uhm, as you know we are
working very closely with DOE to monitor the Carter
case budget and based on current information that we
have right now, we believe that the amount that we
budgeted for is appropriate. Because the FY20
amounts that you uh, uh, just highlighted, reflects
prior year accruals. Okay, you know, they have some
prior year accruals okay in that 20 numbers, FY20
numbers that makes it that basically overstate.

CHATRPERSON DROMM: That’s because of the
backlog?

JACQUES JIHA: Yes, so we yeah, yeah. So, you
know, we are continuously monitoring this budget and

uh, we will make adjustment if necessary. So, you
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know, it’s something that we watch closely. Okay,
with DOE and necessary you know, necessary adjustment
but that I would believe that we have at this point
and time is very appropriate.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Are there any plans for a
comprehensive review or an audit of the Carter cases
and how the DOE is handling them?

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, uhm, DOE is continuously
reviewing its capacity to provide special education
services. As you may recall, uhm, the Administration
and DOE recently invested $33 million in the creation
of a new special education program within DOE and
early education. And we also hire additional
employees to increase DOE in house capacity.

It’s making a difference but we have not seen you
know a major change in the trend, the Carter case
spending trend at this point and time. But again, we
will continue to work with you and to make sure that
we are addressing the needs. But this is an issue
that we constantly monitor.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: So, during the height of the
pandemic, one of the major concerns that a number of
Council Members and myself included has was the

provision of services to students with special
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education or IEP plans. Uhm, moving forward, is
there any way to address some of the gaps in those
services that you see in terms of the budget moving
forward?

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, I mean, yes, definitely, I
agree with you, we budget about $7.5 billion into
special education and funding for special ed in
district school in need of services and so again, we
will continue to and will work with you to see you
know, areas where there is a gap. What can we do you
know, together and to address this situation.

CHATRPERSON DROMM: Sure, I know that when we get
to the Preliminary budget hearing on Education, we
are going to go more into depth on those gquestions.
But obviously, it’s a matter of very serious concern
to all of us, particularly myself as a former
educator.

Uhm, let me talk to you now a little bit about
uhm, some of the property tax rebates that the Mayor
had promised. As part of the Preliminary Budget
release, Mayor de Blasio announced that they would
like to do a property tax rebate for class 1
homeowners with market values below $500,000. Then

later in the day, as part of the announcement
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regarding the increased FEMA reimbursement, the Mayor
said that they would definitely do this for next
year. So, what is the status of the rebate and it
would obviously require state legislation, so where
are you in the process in discussions with the state
on this?

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, currently we are drafting
legislation and working with state partners to move
this as quick as possible.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Uhm, in the Mayor’s plan,
uhm, I don’t believe the co-ops and condos were
included in that. Why are co-ops and condos not
included in that? I seem to recall from the past,
that when where were rebates, similar rebates done,
co-op and condo owners did receive the rebate as
well.

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, the premise of the rebate is
the fact that the Mayor was concerned because of
state tax laws that basically cap the growth in
assets value okay, for class 1 properties. As a
result of that cap, even though you have market
declines, market value declines in certain areas in
some extent for Class 1 property owners, because of

the caps that these home owners, Class 1 homeowners
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would experience a tax increase, even in some
environment that we are in now.

So, the Mayor decided you know to come up with a
policy to basically make sure that you know, property
owners or low-income property owners do not
experience an increase in taxes as a result of the
tax law okay. So, that’s the reason why you know, we
come up with a policy to provide a rebate to Class 1
property owners. We don’t have the same experience
for co-op and condos. So, co-op and condos are not
facing the same challenges that Class 1 property
owners are facing. That’s the reason why co-op and
condos were not included.

CHATIRPERSON DROMM: I think in assessment of
Committees, that about one-third of them have seen
their assessments rise on the tentative role. So,
are you disputing that?

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, some of them you know,
basically are high end you know, the high end, that’s
probably why you see some increase. But on the very
low end of the spectrum, we don’t see major increases
that would warrant to include the co-op and condos as

part of the rebate.
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CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay and can you explain why
would you base the threshold on the market value
rather than on the income of the property owners?

JACQUES JIHA: Uh, just because we want to
provide — we want to distribute the rebate as quickly
as possible because it’s a lot easier to do this way
because that’s information that we have. Whereas we
don’t have the income and the property information at
the same time, in the same database. So, this is
just basically to allow us to quickly distribute the
rebate to property owners. As it is, you know, we
are limited to market value instead of doing it as
income.

The assumption here is you know, the lower market
value of the property you know implies that the
property owner is not at which present.

CHATIRPERSON DROMM: Uhm, okay. Uhm, so in the
prior rebates, the city has done homeowners who had
fallen behind on their bills were denied rebates.
However considering the difficulties many residents
are facing, do you plan on making the same
requirement?

JACQUES JIHA: Uhm, we are in the process of

drafting decisions, a good point. We will take that




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE JOINTLY WITH THE SUBCOMMITTEE
ON CAPITAL BUDGET AND THE COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS 58

into account as we draft the legislation. It’s a
valid point. It recognizes a very tough environment
and we have to see if what we can we do, what can be
done to make sure that these people receive the
rebates. Yeah.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay and finally, on this
question, do property owners have to pay taxes on the
rebate? That was part of I think what happened in
the —

JACQUES JIHA: No, no, no, no, they would not.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: They would not, okay and that
would be included in the state legislation or?

JACQUES JIHA: 1It’s — we could put it in the
state legislation but it would probably lower the
deduction for a group of people but for that person
with the income that is low that I don’t believe that
they even would you know be able to use the local
property tax deduction, to take advantage of part of
that deduction.

So, therefore I don’t believe these people will
be impacted perse. You know, they would make the
case that they would lower the property tax
deductions that they use to offset you know the

income taxes. But given the income range of many of
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these folks, I am assuming the not using deduction,
you know, they are using some of the deduction most
likely.

So, you know, so it’s automatically being
impacted.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: So, when you are talking
about the rebate, you are saying it would be a
deduction in the taxes due or would they actually get
a cash check?

JACQUES JIHA: Uh, well, we have to discuss our
best way we are going to do it. Whether or not we
are going to do it through a rebate or whether or not
we are going to issue a check. You know, the easiest
way to do it would be to do it through a rebate, I
mean through a credit. Okay, but we would have to
you know, make a decision on whether or not we would
do it — if we do it through a credit or to a check.
Issuing a check.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay, the reason I was asking
that is because you know, in the past I think that
they viewed it as income and then you were taxed on
it. That’s where I was going with that.

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, yeah.
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CHAIRPERSON DROMM: So, just on that, will you
promise to show us a draft — the draft and discuss
with the Council prior to going to Albany on it?

JACQUES JIHA: Sure, sure, sure, yes.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay, so you will work with
us on that?

JACQUES JIHA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay and let me go now to
some property assessment questions that I have.
Fiscal 22 is an atypical year for property
assessments, which failed by 3.9 percent according to
DOF tentative assessment roll due to mainly by large
market value declines in Class 2 and 4 properties.
The mayor has spoken a lot about this.

DOF bases market values on these properties on
income and expense data collected directly from
property owners, though due to time it takes to
collect and analyze data, there is a one year lag
between the data and the date of the evaluation.

So, typically DOF looks to historic trends to
make up for this lag. However, considering historic
impact on the pandemic on real estate, DOF switched
to using economic indicators to update the data.

While a smart way to address this issue, the lack of
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real time data makes it hard to judge the accuracy of
DOF’s method.

Further, there is only a downside risk here as
the tax commission can reduce assessments if they
find them overvalued but there is no recourse if the
city undervalued the property. So, considering that
there is no real time data for comparison, how
confident is your office in DOF’s for Class 2 and 4
market values and do you believe that there is a
greater risk of a tax commission reductions this
year?

JACQUES JIHA: Uhm, we expect to — I mean the
following deadline for challenges with the tax
commission is March 1st. That was yesterday for
Class 2 and Class 4 and March 15t for Class 1.

Is it possible that you could have an increase in
challenges? It’s possible but at this point and time
it is unknown but I think the larger question you ask
with respect to whether or not I have confidence.
Yes, I have full confidence in what DOF is doing.
Because what happened is, as you know, 1s income and
expense data are critical inputs in the evaluation
matter that is used by the department to do their

evaluation. Like you said, there is a one year lag
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between the financial data that are submitted by
commercial property owners and used by DOF and the
starting date of the evaluation but to bring the
income and expense up to date, what DOF usually does
is basically they usually trend forward. Okay, the
income and expense data using basically income
indicators such as the unemployment rate of the
region. Just as an example, but this year because
these economic indicators do not usually have a huge
swing from year to year, they don’t typically have a
material impact on the DOF projected income and
expense in a normal year.

Unfortunately, you know, last year, because of
the pause order, the lockdown — because of the lag
down, these indicators basically experience — the
city’s economy experienced some significant
deterioration and as a result you know, they were
reflected in the indicators. For instance, the
unemployment rate was from 3.4 percent in February
pre-COVID to about 20 percent in June.

So, with that kind of swing okay, that kind of a
swing had a significant impact on the forecast of

income and expense that DOF published. So, as a
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result, that’s what you have the issues that we dealt
with.

So, next year, we will have the actual data at
which point, we will know whether or not it’s much
worse or much better. But from my perspective, I
feel confidence in the methodology that DOF uses and
uh, this is not something new that they have done,
this is something that they do every year. Simply
that the economy has deteriorated so much okay, that
when you use these indicators to basically forecast
the income and expense statement data that they use
okay to do evaluation, they are going to influence
okay, in the wrong direction. Okay and that’s what
happened.

So, I feel confidence in their ability to do the
job. They know what they are doing. They are very
good at it.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay, thank you Mr. Director.
I just have a couple of more gquestions. Uhm, Mayor
de Blasio’s 2021’s Stated City Address included
several new initiatives. All of which presumably
would require additional funding. The announcements
included reopening schools fully in September,

expanding the deepening Journey Home program to end
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street homelessness and doubling the workforce for
the cure violence and crisis management system and
creating a city cleanup corps, which proposes to hire
10,000 new workers to clean up neighborhoods. I
think the Speaker began to address some of this as
well.

So, what is the price tag for all of those
programs you know, each individually and are any of
them fully funded in the Preliminary plan?

JACQUES JIHA: Uhm, yeah, the school reopening is
basically, it’s funded — you know we have $516
million included you know, in the Preliminary Budget
but we think the cost is going to be much higher.
I’'s about $767 million. That’s something we are
going to have to deal with in the upcoming plans.
That’s with respect to school reopening’s.

With respect to the Journey Home Program to end
homeless, street homeless, there are no new
anticipated costs to this program. We are just
doubling down on equipment to find safe havens.

Uhm, Cure Violence and the Crisis Management
System, we are still working with City Hall and MOCJ
on the necessary funding. We roughly have about $17

million right now but we among those about to issue
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RFP. So, once we have all the details of the — once
we have the response of the RFP, we would get a
better sense of what to expect.

With respect to the creation of the city cannot
call, which the Mayor announced in the State of the
City, which is a program that the Mayor basically
says it is contingent on the city receiving Stimulus,
federal stimulus. We are working with City Hall and
different folks to find out exactly how that program
is going to be structured and once we have a better
sense on how we will be structured and if we have the
— receive the federal stimulus, we will come back to
you with an update in terms of how much it is
expected to cost, which agency will house that
program. Okay and how many people in general we are
going to have to hire and how quickly we will hire
them, so we could give you a sense of how much it
will cost.

Sorry, are you muted?

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Yeah, I am sorry. Is the
cleanup corps, 1is that the one that you are referring
to? That depends on federal aid?

JACQUES JIHA: Yes, yeah.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: And the others do not?
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JACQUES JIHA: No.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay, alright thank you Mr.
Director. I am going to turn it over to my colleague
Chair Rosenthal.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Great, thank you so much.
Thank you Chair Dromm. I appreciate all your
questions. I am looking forward also to getting good
concrete answers from OMB to your questions and mine
are going to similarly be, I hope we can get some
details soon.

Director, it’s again, so great to be working with
you. The Mayor announced yesterday that the city
will be restarting the $17 billion in capital
projects, which will be overseen by the newly
appointed Recovery Czar Lorraine Grillo, which is
terrific. This is great news for the city and for
the construction industry. I am wondering do you
have a list of those projects or types of projects
and how — well, first of all, do you have a list of
those projects?

JACQUES JIHA: Yes, as I indicated in my
testimony, we have a list of all the projects and the
timeline and both for the Council Members if they are

interested.
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CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Oh, very interested. So,
good, if you could send that list over and it
includes the timeline and so, only because I haven’t
seen the list, does that mean the timeline — just
quickly, is the timeline in the current year or over
the two Fiscal Years?

JACQUES JIHA: The timelines are when we are
starting those projects. All projects you know, we
will have all projects started by the end of the
month. By the end of this month.

CHATIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: $17 billion worth of
capital projects will the certificate to proceed will
be signed by the end of the month?

JACQUES JIHA: What we are doing is we have —
this is the capital program that we have. It is part
of our strategy to speed up due to COVID. We are
going to you know, try our best to get as much of
that registered with the Comptroller. We are working
with the Law Department. We are working with MOCS.
It’s an all hands on deck approach in terms of
pushing as hard as we can as humanly possible to get
as much as possible in other contracts.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Thank you. Are you saying

that if at the end of June, which is the end of the
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Fiscal Year, the projects, we don’t have a $17
billion worth of projects registered, that the fault
lays with the Law Department or —

JACQUES JIHA: Oh, no, no, no, no, no, no, no.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: With the Comptroller or
MOCS?

JACQUES JIHA: No, no, no, no, no, no, no. It’s
an entire process. It’s as you know; it’s you have
to go through a research and process the Comptroller.
You have to go through a review with OMB, with MOCS.

CHATIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Right but what I am
saying Director is that you and I both know that,
right?

JACQUES JIHA: Yes.

CHATIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: So, knowing that, I
thought I heard you say that the goal is to commit
all $17 billion by June 30th. And I just wanted to
confirm that, yes or no?

JACQUES JIHA: No, no, no, no, no. That’s not
what I said. I said, you know, we are starting a
type of process. Okay, the process was on pause
okay. We are starting the entire process okay and we

are basically going to work with all the agencies,
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whether it is MOCS, Law, Comptroller’s Office to try
to register as many contracts as possible.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Yeah —

JACQUES JIHA: I cannot guarantee we can do $17 —

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: For sure but you and I
both know all the details. All the steps that go
into getting it to the point where it registers with
the Comptroller. If I recall correctly, in the
cobwebs in my brain, that he has 30 days which to
approve or disapprove or send back.

So, hypothetically, he could send all of them
back but let’s not make any assumptions about the
Comptroller. My question is given that you know and
given that we now have passports and passports and I
hear many of the contractors on the construction site
are signing up passport.

I guess my question is, how far along will each
of the $17 billion worth of projects be by June 30th?
Will they all be by then at least at the
Comptroller’s office for registration? Again, we
can’t know what he will do with it. He might send
them back but will they have been processed and at

his desk?
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JACQUES JIHA: I don’t know. I can’t tell you
because as I said, you know, we are starting,
restarting starting the projects and we have to work
with the agencies.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Okay, so I hear your
answer but I just want you to know it’s like mind
numbing that uhm, you know because uh, I know OMB is
better than that and I know OMB, when they talk about
timelines, know that is it going to take this much
time at MOCS, this much time at the Law Department,
this much time at DOI and all the steps and I am
confident your staff has that information today.
About all $17 billion worth of projects and the
reason I am animated about it is because I am just
trying to understand that yesterday when the Mayor
announced that we would be going with $17 billion
worth of capital projects by the end of this Fiscal
Year, I am just trying to see is that realistic?

JACQUES JIHA: We will restart the $17 billion
capital program okay. You know —

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: So, we have to read
between the lines?

JACQUES JIHA: I am sorry?
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CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: So, we have to read
between the lines when the Mayor announces this
stuff.

JACQUES JIHA: No, no, no, it’s not reading
between the lines.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: That’s a little too cute

JACQUES JIHA: No, no, we are going to try our
best. You know, we are going to try our best. I
mean, the reason that you told me you had was, you
know, you want to restart the program as quickly as
possible. You and I had that discussion. Okay, you
want to restart this as soon as, as quickly as
possible. We share the same goal okay. We believe
that as part of the strategy to speed up the city’s
goal okay, capital program should play a critical
role.

So, what I said to you is we are going to do our
best okay, to move as fast as humanly possible.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: So, what does that mean
for example, do you already have the list of
projects? Do you already have them in priority

order?
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JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, as I said, I have the list
of projects okay. By the end of the month, okay, we
would have restarted all capital projects that were
on pause. Okay, all of them that were on pause.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: All 17, does that mean
CT’'s —

JACQUES JIHA: All projects that were on pause.
All projects that were on pause.

CHATIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: To proceed these signed
by OMB by the end of the month?

JACQUES JIHA: The projects that were on pause,
okay. That’s what I am saying to you. The projects
that were on pause, all of them, okay will have
restarted. We will be giving all of them a go okay.
We will basically begin to review all cities okay,
all the cities that we have okay, and then engage and
then have them begin the process. So, all of the
projects that were on pause.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: So, have you begun those
discussions with your Deputy Directors and with
Lorraine Grillo, I know she just started, or with the
agencies? Is that what your staff is now is working

with the agencies to get those started?
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JACQUES JIHA: They are working with all the
agencies okay, all the projects that were on pause.
Okay, we have a staggered schedule as I have said to
you before.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Sure, sure.

JACQUES JIHA: Some of them would be released on
March 15th, some of them will be released at the end
of the month, which is on March 26th okay.

So, staff are working with all the agencies okay,
they are going to start doing the reviewing process

okay, see what can be done to help with the research

and process as much as possible. It’s all hands on
deck so we could do as much as possible. So we could
capitalize.

CHATIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Okay.

JACQUES JIHA: On the capital program that we
have to speed up —

CHATRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Great, no I support you
100 percent and with that, is OMB subject to the
attrition plan and will that affect OMB’s ability to
you know move along these projects?

JACQUES JIHA: OMB like every other agency
subject to truthful and efficient time yes. And

obviously, obviously, obviously you know, because
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that’s of course going to have an impact because you
know, we don’t have all the capacity to do it but
with what we have, we are going to try to be as
productive as we can be, okay.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Yeah, I see that because

JACQUES JIHA: I honor your skeptical, I honor in
your skepticism. I honor your skepticism.
CHAIRPERSSON ROSENTHAL: Okay, let’s move on.
JACQUES JIHA: No, 1it’s warranted but at the same
time, we also like — you and I, we share the same
goal which is try to accelerate that process as
quicky as possible and we are going to try our best.
That’s all we can do. Give it our best shot.
CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Hmm, hmm, oh, okay. I am
going to move on. The pandemic continues to have a
major impact on the city’s financial health as you
know as well as the health of the citizens. The
states pause order, along with the city’s cash flow
issues, brought the majority of the city’s capital
projects to a temporary halt as we have been
discussing and OMB naturally uhm, has played a key
role in those actions and the decisions behind making

them.
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I am wondering uhm, what factors related to the
city’s cash flow? And I really just want to focus on
cash flow. Not you know, the Governor’s list of what
things could continue or not. What you know,
building projects could continue or not. I would
like to focus on cashflow.

So, what factors related to the city’s cash flow
cause the Administration to decide to halt most of
the city’s capital projects and again, really
focusing on cash flow now.

JACQUES JIHA: As you can imagine uh, uh, in the
midst of the pandemic, no one — there was a lot of
uncertainties with respect to one, what’s going to
happen with tax revenues. Okay, how bad things would
get. There were gquestions about whether or not you
know, we would have access with the capital market.
Okay, because nobody knew at the time what was going
to happen to the capital market.

CHATRPERSON ROSENTHATL: Sure, sure.

JACQUES JIHA: Sure, sure. So, because we are
trying to be as cautious as we can be which is you
know, which was warranted at the time, OMB put a
pause on all major spending’s, all major contracts

because of the potential impact okay on draining
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cashes because of cash. Because the city at some
point had to make the decision whether or not to
continue to keep the lights on for the employees
okay. Or put a pause on these projects and on top of
that —

CHATRPERSON ROSENTHAL: So —

JACQUES JIHA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: So, so, uhm, what was the
cash on hand then when you were making those
decisions. I think those were mid- it feels mid-May
to me but —

JACQUES JIHA: I wasn’t here, so I don’t remember
perse.

CHATIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: I know but your staff
know, they are here.

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, I remember perse what was
the cash position at the time but it was an immediate
concern. It was a very big concern at the time.

CHATIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Right, yeah, I am just
trying to hurry it along because I know my colleagues
have lots of questions. So, I really apologize for
interrupting you. It is truly no disrespect.

JACQUES JIHA: Sure, sure, sure.
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CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: In the back of my head, I
can see all my colleagues glaring at me on the panel.
So, that’s — I really apologize on that but I guess
what I am asking and from your staff is, uhm, you
know, when was you know, back in February the city’s
bond rating was the highest it’s ever been. And so,
when did the city go to market with that bond rating-?
Was it any time between February and May 15t and
what uhm, indicators were there? Yeah, just that
first question. And then, how long did it — how low
did the cash reserve go before you went to market
again and when was that?

JACQUES JIHA: ©Uh, let me, I am just going to
talk to you in general because again, as I said, I
wasn’t there at a time to answer this specific
question.

CHATIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: I really —

JACQUES JIHA: Let me finish. Let me finish.

Let me finish. Let me finish. Let me finish. Let
me finish. Because I wasn’t there at the time you
know, to give you a specific answer you know to your

question but in general okay.
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The city’s cash flow basically is — okay, at the
end of fiscal year. Okay, right before the July
property tax payments okay, typically.

CHATRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Well, then why does HPD
issue a close on all its deals in spring? I mean
there is a plan of action — we all know the
seasonality of tax going in.

JACQUES JIHA: Yes, that’s — my point to you is,
it has nothing to do with the city’s rating okay.
Nobody knew whether or not the market was going to
freeze okay. Nobody knew at the time because the
only thing we knew, the stock market collapsed.
Okay, everything was collapsing at the time.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Oh, I don’t know about
that. I mean, this is why I love the financial

transfer tax. Wall Street made out like bandits and

JACQUES JIHA: At the time, at the time when uh,
the pandemic hit —

CHATRPERSON ROSENTHATL: Immediately, Trump took
credit for all of that.

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, well when the pandemic hit,
okay the market collapsed. Okay, nobody knew at the

time what was going to happen okay.
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CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: I mean, I think we go
back and check. Let’s not go back and forth on this.
Uhm, I think you know; I am sorry that you weren’t
there because I know how I know how hard you have
worked and you have been amazing at Department of
Finance and how many details you know. I really wish
I knew when the last time was that the city went to
market.

JACQUES JIHA: Who provided that information?
CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Given that you go to
market at least four times a year. What was the cash
reserve at, at the low part, at the low moment? And

really, what were the reasons why you didn’t go to
market and therefore we all were in a panic about
cutting SYEP etc., and of course who stopped all the
capital projects? And you know, because the Governor
said you had to stop them all but uhm, I guess uhm, I
guess I am getting to, were there other players
involved that kept you from going to market? I am
not sure the answer is Wall Street. Uhm, I think you
know; the Comptroller has the role as to whether or
not it approves, they approve you going to market.

I don’t know, but perhaps we can sit down another

time with the staff — that were there.
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JACQUES JIHA: We will provide you the specific
information that you requested but what I am trying
to say to you is first and foremost, there was a
Governor’s Pause Order. So, therefore, whether we
like it or not, we couldn’t go forward with
consulting, okay.

CHATIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: But then why did you cut
SYEP? I mean, you can’t have it both ways. Let’s
take this off line so my colleagues can you know.

JACQUES JIHA: Alright, okay, okay.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Uhm, so is there anything
in particular that OMB is doing to speed up this
process and do you have any thoughts again, we could
talk off line for how we could responsibly speed up
the CP Approval process?

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, we basically, we basically,
on our part, we are basically asking the agency to
send us a full, complete package okay, with all the
information that you know — we are asking them not to
give us information piece mail. Just send us a
complete package. We will review the complete
package all at once and make a decision you know

whether to go forward or not right away.
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So, i1it’s not a question are we sitting on some
information. This is a piece — this is the most
critical aspect of it.

CHATRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Yeah, I gotcha.

JACQUES JIHA: A package, fully complete and —
CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: For sure and did the
agency heads know that was coming back in February or
January? That that point was coming down the pike?

JACQUES JIHA: That’s been a change in the
process. Yeah, that’s been a change in our process.

CHATIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Okay, great.

JACQUES JIHA: And that’s the reason why — go
ahead.

CHATIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: When did that start?

JACQUES JIHA: That’s been a change in our
process even prior to the epidemic okay. That we
requested that the agency send us all complete
package to review instead of sending them to us
piecemeal and thereby consuming a lot more time than
necessary.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Okay, thank you. Two
more quick questions. I will try. The Fiscal 2125
Preliminary Capital Commitment plan totals $84.1

billion. Again, with $17.6 planned in the current
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fiscal year. As of December, the city had actual
commitments of approximately $2.4 billion. Uhm, and
you know, as I said in my opener, before the
pandemic, the city was making amazing strides in
increasing annual commitments with a high point in
2019 of $12.6 billion. The Delta between 17.6 and
12.6 when we were at our best. Obviously, it’s $5
billion.

If you were able to get to 12.6, is anyone
working on a priority list or the lowest priority
list of what won’t be committed this year?

JACQUES JIHA: Uhm, let me update the information
that you just had.

CHATIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: For sure.

JACQUES JIHA: Because for Fiscal Year ’21,
currently it’s like upward $3.2 billion to generate
in terms of commitment. And as I indicated before,
we — everyone is working as hard as they can to see —

CHATIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: Including all of your —
for OMB and the city’s capital commitment plan and
the city winning you know. Really issuing all this.
So —

JACQUES JIHA: As part of our strategy, to speed

up the recovery, the capital program is critical.
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So, we are going to do — we are doing this by design.
Okay, it’s on purpose. We are basically going to try
our best as much as humanly possible okay, to get as
many contracts as possible registered.

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: But I am just not —

JACQUES JIHA: We are working with the different
agencies, as I said, working with Law, MOCS, okay,
OMB and we will also be working with the Comptrollers
as well. Okay, to get as many of these contracts as
possible.

So, we are working with the agency. I don’t know
what else to tell you, you know. It’s a
collaborative process. It’s collaborative process.
We are telling these folks, you know, we are giving
them the go ahead, the green light. Okay, to restart
the project okay. They are going to submit the CP’s
to us. We are going to review the CP’s as quickly as
possible okay and turn them around and turn them
around as quickly as possible. All the players are
going to do — we are going to do these not
sequentially but —

CHAIRPERSON ROSENTHAL: I have been told that

despite you’re not being able to give us the exact
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design and actually what you are doing to get it
better, that I need to stop now.

So, I have a last question, maybe we will do it
at second round. Thank you so much for your patience
Chair Dromm.

JACQUES JIHA: No problem.

CHATIRPERSON DROMM: Thank you very much and I
just want to remind everyone of time also. We are
going to now go to Council Member Kallos, Chair
Kallos and then we do have Council Member questions
as well. So, thank you. Chair Kallos.

CHATIRPERSON KALLOS: Good to see you Director
Jiha. I am told your new position is a step up from
Commissioner despite the change in title. As
mentioned in my opening, I am only going to ask four
questions about indirect cost rate initiative,
contracted headcount, outsourcing and performance
based contracts.

First, I want to thank both Speaker Johnson and
Chair Rosenthal for the work you have done in
fighting for the indirect rate funding our human
service providers need and deserve. In Fiscal Year

2020, the Administration agreed to cover the actual
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cost of the indirect rate for human service providers
and budgeted $54 million.

This is to cover all the things that nonprofits
need to provide services, whether it’s ending hunger
or helping the homeless or helping youth, our
seniors. There is a lot of overhead that weren’t
covered by our contracts and what happened is last
year the Administration ended up cutting the indirect
cost rate initiative by $20 million baselined across
11 agencies. The cut hit the indirect rate increase
and it wasn’t moving forward. It was actually
retroactive, so we actually cut funding that we
promised people they would be getting.

The Administration should honor our deal and its
promise to the human services sector and restore
indirect rate funding in the upcoming budget.

How much is needed to fully fund the indirect
rate initiative at the approved rates this year and
in the baseline? And will the Administration commit
today to restoring and fully funding indirect cost
rate funding in this year’s budget?

JACQUES JIHA: Uh, yes, like we said, uhm,
savings work —

CHAIRPERSON KALLOS: I heard yes, we good.
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JACQUES JIHA: You heard, okay.

CHATRPERSON KALLOS: I am kidding.

JACQUES JIHA: Okay, like you said, savings were
taken during the Executive Budget last April for the
Indirect Rate Initiative. Uh, it was reduced by $20
million and it was baselined in the adopted budget.
Initially this was done as a right sizing effort and
based because of providers enrollment at the time,
which was very low. But by the time the adopted
budget come around and enrollment had picked up and
at the time, we realized it was basically a reduction
instead of right sizing okay.

But since then, the economy had worsened and the
decision was made at the time to keep funding level
at the reduced level. Uhm, listen, the initiative is
still active. Uh, we have providers submitting their
claims and document and from our perspective, 1f the
budget picture improves, we will work with the
Council to find a solution for this.

CHATIRPERSON KALLOS: Amazing. How much?

JACQUES JIHA: I don’t know at this point and
time. As I said, you know we have to see what’s
going to happen in terms of you know, the economy.

Whether or not we have more resources but as I said,
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if the picture, if the budget picture improves you
know, we will work with the Council okay, to find a
solution to the decision.

CHAIRPERSON KALLOS: If you could provide the
number. We are negotiating a budget, so we do have
to get a specific number and whether it is restoring
the $20 million or if it is $40 million, that would
be incredibly helpful to just know what number we are
talking about.

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, as I said, at this point and
time, I don’t know. You know because we are still
waiting to see what’s going to happen. Uh, you know,
we are still looking at the overall picture because
we have a lot of needs. So, to the extent that
things improve, you know, we will continue to work
with you.

CHATIRPERSON KALLOS: Great.

JACQUES JIHA: And the nonprofit because it is a
sector that we, we, we, you know, we appreciate what
they do on a day to day basis for funding others.

CHAIRPERSON KALLOS: Let’s move onto the
headcount. The city’s $17 billion contract budget
lacks transparency around consultants and the work

they are hired to do. Many of these contracts
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include positions which fulfill similar or the same
role as city employees.

For example, at a hearing in January, the
President of DC37’s Local 2627 testified that a
consultant at the FDNY was hired and trained to
perform the same duties as a city employee sitting in
a chair next to them at a desk. What is your
estimate of the number of consultants who work for
city agencies doing the same work as city employees
who work right alongside them with the same training
and assignments and have you imposed any hiring
controls or hiring freeze on consultants, or issue
directives to convert consultants to staff or excess
consultants before laying off city employees?

JACQUES JIHA: Uhm, this is an issue of major
concern to us as well because at the end of the day,
you know, it costs us a lot more to hire a consultant
than to a city employee.

So, this is not an issue that we take lightly.
However, we also recognize that there are certain
circumstances when you may need to you know, reach
out to get a consultant on board because a project
could be a really short-term project okay. It’s not

a very long-term project, so therefore you don’t need
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to bring a new employee onboard if you could hire a
consultant in the short-term to do the work.
Sometimes you don’t have the skill set in the house
to do the work so therefore you have to outsource you
know, the appropriate consultant to do the work.

But as I said at the beginning, uh, we share your
concern, okay. This is something that we are trying
to do as best as possible and we understand the
challenges imposed by the 341 Attrition okay, and the
pressure that it puts on agencies because if they
cannot hire employees, employees to do the work. So
the natural thing is to gravitate to outsourcing to
find somebody to do the work for them out there.

So, we will work with the agencies to see as I
said, where to relieve some pressure. Okay, to give
them different agencies where there is a huge need
for this kind of outsourcing effort to look at the
operation to see how much we relief we could provide
them, so they could hire.

Okay, instead of hiring employees instead of
consultants. So, we are in the process of reviewing
the different agencies to see you know, whenever it

is needed, wherever it i1s needed to make the
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appropriate adjustment in terms of the three for one
attrition.

We are very flexible in terms of those
approaching it and you know, so therefore, as I said,
on a day to day basis, we are working with agencies
to see how best to tackle that issue but this is an
issue of concern to us as well because it costs us a
lot more to our consultants and to our employees.

CHAIRPERSON KALLOS: Director Jiha, how dare you.
You stole my third question. This specifically, I
just really appreciate the honesty that I think one
of our concerns is that three to one hiring plan
would lead to agencies just hiring contractors and
you were very honest about that concern too. So, I
guess, going back to one piece of the question. I am
open to any management tool for this. Right now we
do have headcounts by agencies for the city employees
who are on a line called Personal Services. The
contractors end up on a line called Other Than
Personnel services even though they are technically
personnel but we don’t have a headcount for the
contractors sitting in city offices currently in the
budget. Would you be open to trying to get a handle

on how many of these contractors exist sitting at
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city agencies. I am not talking about education, I
am talking about Department of Finance, NYPD, FDNY,
DoITT.

Like, DCAS actually sitting in those and so I
guess that’s one idea and if you had a different
management tool, I would be very interested in that.

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, it is, it’s you know, I
would be more than happy to share the information
with you but it is not easy to get that information
because you have to go through every single contract.
You know, you can imagine to know how many
contractors you know, are required by our pool for
the contract.

But again, it’s an exercise that’s worth doing
and you know once because I am glad you bring it to
my attention. So, once we do, if you know, how
quickly we could get it but it’s about require our
basically every single contract. But it’s something
that we should definitely have at our disposal in
terms of information. So we have a better sense how
best to manage it.

CHAIRPERSON KALLOS: I love going through
contracts. If you have a different way to get at it,

that’s fine. I am just trying to get a sense of it.
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So, let’s move onto the fourth question. We have
been hearing from our non-profit human service
providers that they have performance based contracts,
which often measured success by the number of clients
served rather than outcomes work quality of their
programs.

We have heard a lot of concern that these maybe
inaccurate measures of the work our providers are
doing particularly during the pandemic. Where
providers might have fewer clients but those clients
now have higher needs.

And another question is just focusing on outcomes
and contracting rather than just the simple count of
people served. So, an example would be when we are
doing homeless outreach. If we have one vendor that
reaches out and talks to a 100 people on the street
but only gets one person for every hundred versus
another contractor that goes out and has 100
contractors and gets 10 people off the street, maybe
we should be looking at those outcomes. And that’s
just one example. Are you aware of any human service
providers using city funding because their work does
not time precisely to contract performance measures?

And have you considered adjusting contract
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performance measures, the amount of service and keep
providers whole.

JACQUES JIHA: I am not aware of any providers
you know not getting paid because of their target or
not performing. But again, i1if you have any
information about this, I would be more than happy to
take a look at it but you know, again, conceptually I
do you know, performance contractor is a good tool to
use but you also have to have the right measures
okay. 1If your focus is on the wrong measure, you
could have a performance, you could have metric, you
know, you don’t know whether or not the contract has
performed as it was supposed to. If the focus is on
the wrong metric.

So, therefore you have to have the appropriate
metric as you develop this type of contract. But
again, as I said, I am not aware of a contractor or a
provider who is not getting paid due to this kind of
issue.

So, I would be more than happy to have that
information to take a look at it and see —

CHATIRPERSON KALLOS: We will pass that along and

if we can ask you to review contract payments to
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human service providers to see if reimbursement rates
have dipped during the pandemic.

JACQUES JIHA: Yes, will do.

CHAIRPERSON KALLOS: Director Jiha, you are now
my favorite, officially my favorite Director of the
Office of Management and Budget. You can David that
and let’s keep it up in the follow up. Thank you. I
am done with my first round of questioning and I will
reserve second round to ask some questions about the
district.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: And that’s a real compliment
from Chair Kallos, thank you.

JACQUES JIHA: Yes.

CHATIRPERSON DROMM: I will now go to Committee
Members, Council Member questions. I am going to ask
our Counsel to call their names.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: TIf any Council Members have
questions for the Administration, please use the Zoom
raise hand function and you will be added to the
queue.

Council Members, please keep your questions to
three minutes, including answers and please wait for
the Sergeant at Arms to tell you when your time

begins. The Sergeant will also let you know when you
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time is up. We will now hear from Council Member
Gibson followed by Council Member Ayala.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time starts now.

COUNCIL MEMBER GIBSON: Thank you so much. I
would like to ask for permission to pass to Council
Member Ayala as I gather my questions. Thank you so
much, I apologize.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: We will now begin with
Council Member Ayala followed by Council Member D.
Diaz.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: You know, just before we
start, let’s take a five minute break so that
everybody can do some things that they need to do and
then we will come back. I know that the Director
needs a break for five minutes.

[BREAK 1:58:28- 2:04:34]

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay, I believe that we are
ready to reconvene and start again. Counsel, are you
ready?

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Yes Chair.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay, do you want to call the

witnesses? I mean the Council Members for questions?
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COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Yes, yes. We will now hear
from Council Member Ayala followed by Council Member
Gibson.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time starts now.

COUNCIL MEMBER AYALA: Okay thank you. Good
afternoon. I am trying to figure out what time it
is.

So, I will be very brief, I will ask my questions
up front because we only have three minutes. So, the
Mayor’s Office of Thrive NYC in consultation with the
FDNY, New York City Health + Hospitals, DOHMH and the
NYPD has created a mental health response teams pilot
program to strengthen mental health crisis response
by having trained mental health professionals
response calls. This action removes police from
mental health crisis calls and the NYPD will only
respond when there is a weapon in imminent risks of
harm. If the program used beneficial results and is
expanded citywide, will police be utilized less?
Would a citywide expansion of this pilot redesign
mental health response and replace the NYPD’s co-
response teams?

And then secondly, on February 227, we had a

hearing where we introduced my bill Intro. 2210 to
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create the office of community mental health. Has
OMB done a financial analysis on how expensive this
creating this office would be? And how does that
compare to the existing pilot program?

JACQUES JIHA: Okay, uhm, let me start with the
second question first okay. We, at this point and
time, we do not have a number for you right now but
we can get it to you later on. That is in the
financial analysis, how expensive it is. We do
believe that this bill will have significant costs
okay though and we would prefer to find a way to have
them supplemental work that is planned and already
underway in these areas. But at this point and time,
we do not have a cost associated with that.

Uhm, and what was the first question again? I am
sorry.

COUNCIL MEMBER AYALA: The first question was
regarding the co-response teams that currently exist.
If assuming that the new, the new pilot program that
was recently launched —

JACQUES JIHA: Okay.

COUNCIL MEMBER AYALA: By Thrive, that is

assuming that it works right. Would a citywide
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expansion of that pilot redesign the mental health
response and replace the NYPD’s co-response teams.

JACQUES JIHA: Uhm, well, in 2020 you said the
NYPD responded to about $160,000 mental health and
agency calls, okay. So, we would have to come back
to you with you know, the more you know —

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time expired.

CHAIRPERSON AYALA: It’s fine, you can continue.

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, we will come back to you.
We will come back to you with an answer okay, given
that —

COUNCIL MEMBER AYALA: So, you are going to come
back to me with a response to both?

JACQUES JIHA: With a response — yeah.

COUNCIL MEMBER AYALA: Okay and I did understand
that you don’t have the numbers yet. You haven’t yet
started to estimate —

JACQUES JIHA: Being honest, yes, yes. We will
come back to you.

COUNCIL MEMBER AYALA: Are you expecting to do
that soon. We are in the middle of budget; we are
expecting to pass that bill.

JACQUES JIHA: We will do that very soon. Very

soon, we will provide you and answer.
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COUNCIL MEMBER AYALA: I appreciate it. Thank
you.

JACQUES JIHA: No problem.

CHATIRPERSON DROMM: Counsel, next Council Member.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Yes, we will now hear from
Council Member Gibson followed by Council Member
Diaz.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time starts now.

COUNCIL MEMBER GIBSON: Good afternoon everyone.
Thank you so much Chair Danny Dromm and Chair Helen
Rosenthal and Chair Ben Kallos and all of my
colleagues and those who are watching and thank you
to our Director of OMB. Welcome to you and your
team.

We are optimistic about the federal support that
we expect to get and I certainly am grateful that the
Administration decided to restart $17 billion in
capital. You know the impact that that will have
across the city on jobs and economic development,
which is super important to our communities in our
city. I just have three very quick questions that I
wanted to ask about some of the priorities that we

have this fiscal year.
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So, the $17 billion in capital restart,
specifically as it relates to housing and
prioritizing a lot of housing projects whether it’s
through the rezoning’s, the neighborhood plans, the
Seniors First Initiative under NYCHA and HPD or some
of our Article 11 projects. What is the direction
that OMB is giving HPD as it relates to contracts and
pushing out a lot of these awards by the end of this
year as many of us are leaving and want to see a lot
of these projects up and running. That’s my first
question.

My second question is related to a lot of the
signature priorities that the Mayor talks about.
Last year’s budget we had to delay the expansion of
UPK and 3K in parts of our city and he talked about
getting that back up and running in this budget.

So, I want to know where that is as it relates to
UPK, 3K and also the agency cuts. I am extremely
concerned about the future of the Parks Department
and Sanitation moving forward. A lot of us have had
to clean our streets, clean our parks with
volunteers. It’s been a challenges over the last
year. Are we going to see some restorations in many

of these city agencies that were decimated?
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And my last question relates to the summer season
for 2021 and what that looks like. What are
conversations we are having now with Commissioner
Chong at DYCD as it relates to summer youth and Youth
Employment, Work, Learn and Grow, Compass, SONYC,
Beacon, all the cornerstone programs that we care
about, are we talking about what a full program looks
like or will it be a combination of in person and
remote because the City Council wants to be very
helpful in moving that forward, so that we can have
as robust a summer season for young people and young
adults as best we can.

So, those are my three questions and thank you so
much for your work.

JACQUES JIHA: Thank you very much. Uhm, again,
I am going to try to do my best to answer all these
questions all at once.

Uhm, with the special HPD, COVID-19 caused some
slowdown in the pipeline last spring but the
development pipeline is back in full swing and we are
committed to meeting our goal of producing the 25,000
this Fiscal Year.

Uhm, with respect to and I remember now, with

respect to Sanitation and Parks, again, we share the
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same concerns that you have because as I said,
recovery, this is critical to the city’s recovery.
So, uhm, we will see as we look at a budget
allocation cycle to see what can be done okay, with
respect to some of the services that were cut. But
again, it all depends on the financial situation of
the city as we get closer to Fiscal Year ’'22.

Uhm, with respect to uh, uh, the Summer Youth
Program. As you know, we added about $132 million in
the budget for 7,000 slots. So again, it depends,
depending on this health conditions in New York City
at the time and depending you know, on how quickly we
recover and how many folks get vaccinated. That’s
going to determine exactly the kind of program we are
going to have whether it is going to be online or
whether it is going to be in person at this point and
time. I cannot tell you. I know for sure it is a
program that is a priority for us and that’s the
reason why we already allocated resources in the
Preliminary Budget for this.

I don’'t know if I answered all of your questions.

COUNCIL MEMBER GIBSON: What about UPK and 3K

Director? 3K expansion?
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JACQUES JIHA: Again, this is a priority project
for us like you know and the Mayor, we had doing the
budget, the Preliminary Budget, we had basically
delayed some of PreK, expansion of the PreK program
for this year. But on the day of the announcement of
the budget, I wanted to find out we received the FEMA
uh, uh, uh, 100 match resources. The Mayor announced
at that time that uh, uhm, uhm, we would open uhm,
PreK’s in District 1, 12, 14 and 29. They will come
online in Fiscal Year ’'22 which will bring us about
16 districts, but again, this is a program that is a
priority for us and as long as we have the resources,
we will continue to expand.

COUNCIL MEMBER GIBSON: Okay, thank you so much.
My time is up but I thank you and certainly want to
emphasize, you know, my colleagues and I want to make
sure — for many of us, this is our final budget and
it has to be reflective of what we care about. We
have to invest in children, families, youth, seniors
and so many vulnerable New Yorkers that have been
devastated by COVID. Traumatized. So, when we talk
about social emotional learning and trauma informed
care, we have to focus on these programs and not look

to add you know Law Enforcement in schools. These
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are conversations we have to have and we have to be
very deliberate about our priorities.

These streets are not clean. They need to be
cleaned. Parks need to be clean. All of these
things that we care so much about, they have to be
prioritized in this budget. So, I thank you, I thank
you Chair Dromm and Chair Rosenthal for your work and
I look forward to our continued conversations ahead.
This month during the Preliminary Budget process.
Thank you so much everyone, thanks.

CHATRPERSON DROMM: Thank you Council Member
Gibson and Council Member Gibson, I don’t know if you
were on before but I did acknowledge your service as
the Chair of the Subcommittee and I want to thank
you. It was a wonderful three year experience and I
know you are on to bigger and better things but thank
you very, very much.

COUNCIL MEMBER GIBSON: Thank you Chair as well,
you too.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay, alright, Counsel, let’s
go to our next Council Member please.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: Yes. We will now hear from
Councilman Diaz followed by Council Member Powers.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time starts now.
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COUNCIL MEMBER DIAZ: Good afternoon colleagues
and we have been at it for two and a half hours.
Thank you for staying on top of your game and not
losing focus. You are definitely asking good and
tough questions. I want to thank Chairman Dromm for
your leadership and your continued commitment and OMB
Director here for taking on this challenge during
these troubling times.

As I go onto my questions. As the Chair of the
Women and Gender Committee, I want to understand the
total investment in the average domestic violence. I
am not finding it to be transparent. Therefore, I am
finding it difficult to see the investment that is
indicated that is taking place during these times.

Can I get a commitment from OMB that moving
forward, a tracking system will be in place so
someone like me and obvious can follow the process?

JACQUES JIHA: Uh, yes, I mean I will be more
than happy to discuss this with you. I will have
Ivan from my office reach out to you to know exactly
what you are looking for in terms of what kind of
information you are looking for and what it is that
you need and to share as much information as possible

with you.
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COUNCIL MEMBER DIAZ: Okay, then early on you
mentioned cuts and not cuts. It wasn’t clear to me
in the area of domestic violence and shelters. Where
there major cuts too or not to those areas of social
services?

JACQUES JIHA: At the state budget. We are
discussing about the state budget.

COUNCIL MEMBER DIAZ: Okay. Okay, thank you.
That is all.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Thank you, let’s go to our
next Council Member.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: We will now hear from Council
Member Powers followed by Council Member Grodenchik.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time starts now.

COUNCIL MEMBER POWERS: Thank you. Hi there,
thanks for the testimony. I want to just ask a
couple quick couple questions quickly but one of the
first starting points, I am not sure if I heard this
earlier discussed but we are expected to be receiving
some federal money here. We are hopeful and keeping
our fingers crossed but it does look optimistic. Can
you talk to us a little bit about the
Administration’s plan for how to I think it’s roughly

in the area of $5 billion. Where you see priority
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areas and where you expect that money to be spent as
part of the — I think and it may straddle two budgets
perhaps but can you just talk just a little bit about
where you see that money being spent in the coming
budget year?

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, as I indicated for the
Speaker earlier that we are in the beginning phase of
the Executive Budget. We have not made any decision
in respect to federal aid because simply because we
don’t know how much we are going to receive.

I mean, it’s included in the house budget and we
don’t have any guarantee that it is going to stay —

COUNCIL MEMBER POWERS: Just for remedy sake, do
you have priority areas that you see as needing
funding if we are as lucky enough to receive it?

JACQUES JIHA: Oh yeah, our priorities are the
same. We have health and the safety of the New
Yorkers; school reopening and we want to make sure —
ensure that we have a swift recovery of the economy.
These you know, have safety school reopening’s and
recovery. These are critical areas for us in terms
of where we are making investment and we continue to

make investment. Because uh you know, we cannot have
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a fully functioning economy, a functional budget if
we don’t have a functional economy.

So, we have to make sure we have you know, we
swiftly open the economy and people start coming back
to the office, coming back to work and that’s how we
generate tax revenue, personal income tax and
property tax revenue. So these are areas of priority
for us at this point and time but as I said —

COUNCIL MEMBER POWERS: I am glad to hear that.
My priority as well and I am representing Mid-Town
and so much of the area that is forward facing to the
world, especially when it comes to tourism and
attractions here in the city. I have been
particularly concerned about the decline in spending
in district for restaurants and other areas that have
been you know ancillary to this and have been hard
hit but also, making sure that those institutions and
the things that really drive people back into the
city are going to survive through this pandemic.

One of the things I am asking for and would love
your partnership and hear your thoughts on it in the
meantime is around financial support for the
institutions like the arts and cultural institutions

that make up the city. We talked a lot about live
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performance venues as one area where there overall
being is going to be much longer than others. They
can’t do outdoor dining or anything like that. Does
the Administration have a thought or a plan or
willing to work with us around a plan to help provide
financial assistance to those institutions that help
bring folks back into the city?

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time expired.

COUNCIL MEMBER POWERS: Are facing uncertain
financial future right now?

JACQUES JIHA: As you know, cultural institutions
are a vital part of the New York City economy. I
mean, there is no other place we could find another
roadway. So, therefore it’s something that — it’s a
key to New York City’s recovery. And from my
perspective is as personal I am saying, it’s the most
important thing from my perspective we can do right
now for cultural institutions, 1is to safely restart
the New York City’s economy. And from my
perspective, that’s why the vaccination campaign is
very, very, very important. People have to be —
people have to feel safe to come to New York City.
Okay and once that happens, okay, from Broadway will

pick up again and — but again, we have done a lot of
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things with the institutions but we are happy to
partner with you okay and to see uh, where we could
offer opportunities for cultural groups and artists
to program in streets. So, you know, because all of
these things will bring as much as possible to uplift
our communities.

So again, I am more than happy to partner with
you to see you know what creative ideas that you have
that we could work together on to see what can be
done to basically accelerate the recovery process for
art and cultural institutions.

COUNCIL MEMBER POWERS: Okay, I will end there
because my time is up but I want to — I think that
there is some need for financial relief for some of
these folks hopefully with federal money that comes
being that I think we are about a year away from some
of these institutions for being able to fully
recuperate vaccinations and other and slow reopening.

So, I think anything we can do together, I will
be in touch with your office to discuss that.

JACQUES JIHA: Sure.

COUNCIL MEMBER POWERS: Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Thank you. Counsel.
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COMMITTEE COUNSEL: We will now hear from Council
Member Grodenchik followed by Council Member Louis.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time starts now.

COUNCIL MEMBER GRODENCHIK: Thank you Chair
Dromm. Thank you Director Jiha. I want to thank you
personally for working with my office to do two very
large property tax workouts for two large co-ops in
my district, saving them approximately one-half a
million dollars each and I appreciate that greatly.
That was in your previous role.

I want to confirm something you said that
District 29 will in fact have PreK starting this
fall?

JACQUES JIHA: Yes.

COUNCIL MEMBER GRODENCHIK: Yes, okay, before I
Tweeted that I wanted to make sure it was correct.

And I understand you know, previously Councilman
Powers has asked this and I think Chair Dromm and
maybe even the Speaker, uhm, about what we would do
if we had the money and I think it would be good and
I am sure you are doing this already but I want to
encourage you just in case for OMB to be conducting
an exercise at least to see where that money could

best be plugged in and we all have our ideas and one
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of them that I want to talk to you about today.
Something that myself and Chair Levin of the General
Welfare Committee have been most concerned about and
my dear friend Danny Dromm has added his voice and
the Speaker has made this a priority for this Council
is emergency food. And we did have an allotment last
spring of about $25 million or $26 million. We have
unprecedented hunger in the City of New York and the
pandemic has exacerbated that to the point where some
of the people that I talk to in the social service
community, especially those who specialize in feeding
people estimate that up to $2 million New Yorkers may
now be food insecure. And uhm, we need more money
and I know that you mentioned briefly in your opening
remarks about food but I am asking you to go back
today to the Mayor and to your colleagues at OMB to
figure out ways that we can increase and do another
round of funding for food pantries. They are the
last, they are the backstop. They are the last line
of defense for hungry people in the City of New York
and uhm, they are in many cases, they run out of food
before people, all the people on the line can be
taken care of. This is a critical need despite the

pandemic, we are still one of the wealthiest places
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on earth and it has long been my contention that
nobody should go hungry in the City of New York.

So, I hope that you will speak to the Mayor about
this. I know his heart is in the right place on this
issue. Now we need to show the money. You need to
show us the money. So, I ask for that commitment
today Director Jiha.

JACQUES JIHA: Well, you know, I mean, we share
you know, you know the Mayor shares your goal to
ensure that every New Yorkers, no New Yorkers will go
hungry and that’s the reason why as you know, we have
spent —

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time expired.

JACQUES JIHA: We have spent like over $600
million since March of 2020 on emergency food
programs and again, I will discuss this with the
Mayor. I understand your concern with respect to
food pantry. We advocated about $25 million like we
said last year in the budget for the food pantry and
I will discuss it with the Mayor and I am pretty sure
if we have the resources that we need, I am sure he
will find ways to accommodate your requests.

COUNCIL MEMBER GRODENCHIK: I appreciate your

concern and I thank you for listening to me today and
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for being here. Thank you Chair Dromm and the other
Chairs.

CHATRPERSON DROMM: Thank you. I just want to
reiterate that what Council Member Grodenchik said is
a major concern for me as well. I look out my window
and I see people lined up two blocks long to get a
box of food. And I also want to say that I think
that providing the boxed food is probably the better
way to go rather than the packaged food because it
really allows for the cultural diversity of folks and
if we can move in that direction, I would be very
happy. So, thank you.

COUNCIL MEMBER GRODENCHIK: Thank you Chair.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: We will now hear from Council
Member Louis followed b 1 now hear from Council
Member Louis followed by Council Member Ampry-Samuel.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time starts now.

COUNCIL MEMBER LOUIS: Good afternoon and thank
you Chairs Dromm, Rosenthal and all other Chairs for
having this meeting today. I am happy to see you
Jacques Jiha. I just have two quick questions.

In January, the Mayor had stated that he wanted
to commit to mental health screenings for students

and provide mental health professionals/specialists
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in schools once they reopen. So, I wanted to ask,
like what does that look like and how much has the
Mayor allotted to this program?

JACQUES JIHA: Uhm, in the Preliminary Budget we
added about $35 million for a program called Academy
Consistency, which basically support mental health
and social, emotional learning for students who may
have experienced trauma during COVID.

So, this funding basically would add about 150
social workers and 27 new community schools in
neighborhoods hardest hit by COVID. So, there is
about $35 million in the budget for this program.

COUNCIL MEMBER LOUIS: And so those community
schools, is that citywide or in particular
neighborhoods?

JACQUES JIHA: So, the neighborhoods that were
hardest hit by COVID.

COUNCIL MEMBER LOUIS: Okay.

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah.

COUNCIL MEMBER LOUIS: And can we get that
information about those communities where —

JACQUES JIHA: Sure, sure, sure. We will provide

them to you.
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COUNCIL MEMBER LOUIS: Alright and last question.
So, the Fiscal 2022 Preliminary Budget cuts, Summer
SONYC, middle school Camp programming for
approximately 8,500 students. While keeping all
other camp funding whole in COMPASS, Beacon and
cornerstone sites.

So, I wanted to know what the Administration was
thinking when singling out the summer programming and
cutting $5.7 million?

JACQUES JIHA: 1It’s not singling out. It’s Jjust
a question of you know, we were facing some
significant budget challenges as you know and we had
to make some difficult decisions.

This is not the decision that we would take
lightly. Again, these are things as the situation,
the current condition changes or the current
condition of the city changes. We will review this
to see what can be done okay, but these are not
things that we take lightly.

These are tough decisions that we had to make at
some point because we had to balance a budget. And
so, unfortunately, some of these programs had to
suffer but we had to reduce some of these programs,

cut some of these programs but as things, the




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE JOINTLY WITH THE SUBCOMMITTEE
ON CAPITAL BUDGET AND THE COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS 117

situation, the financial situation improves, we will
take a look one more time at them to see whether or
not some of them can be restored.

COUNCIL MEMBER LOUIS: We definitely would love
if you could take another look at it because these
are kids from the hardest hit communities that would
be suffering from this.

JACQUES JIHA: Sure.

COUNCIL MEMBER LOUIS: But thank you so much. We
look forward to following up. Thank you. Thank you
Chair Dromm.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Thank you very much Council
Member Louis. Let’s go to our next Council Member.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: We will now hear from Council
Member Ampry-Samuel followed by Council Member
Rivera.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time starts now.

COUNCIL MEMBER AMPRY-SAMUEL: Good afternoon
everyone and thanks Chairs for the time. To OMB
Director, you mentioned in your testimony the Fiscal
Year 2022 Preliminary Tenure Capital Strategy is
$118.8 billion. Which reflects a nearly 2 percent

increase over the 2020 tenure Capital Strategy.
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Which included investments and repairs and
improvements to NYCHA developments.

Uhm, can you give us a little more detail about
the NYCHA investments and are these additional monies
for the ongoing capital repairs allocated to regular
Section 9 units or is this associated with the
Section 8 conversions? And my last question, where
do these investments sit on your list of priorities?
And I ask that because historically NYCHA has not
been a huge priority and we know that with everything
we faced in 2020, I am glad to hear people talking
about NYCHA all the time and NYCHA as a priority.

But uhm, you know, clearly, we just want to know
where is the money? Like, what’s really happening?
So, just a little detail about the investments in
NYCHA.

JACQUES JIHA: As you know, we had to comply to
begin with — we had to comply with the agreement, to
fulfill our agreement that we had. So therefore, we
had to add about $250 million a year for the first
four years into NYCHA’s budget to basically comply
with uhm, uhm, the agreement, the federal agreement.
And in addition, we added another $200 million a year

thereafter for each year after the first four years.
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Okay, alright, we also added resources to deal
with repairs and this has nothing to do with the
Section 8 okay. These are the regular Section 9.

So, every resource that we added so far has been you
know, resources related to Section 9 Housing, nothing
to do with Section 8. So, you know right now we — I
believe there is only $600 million basically to
ensure compliance in Fiscal Year '29 and ’"31. It'’s
about like $200 billion each.

So, over the life of the capital plan, we added a
lot of resources to NYCHA.

COUNCIL MEMBER AMPRY-SAMUEL: So, a bulk of it,
the numbers that were giving, the $250 million that
you just mentioned, uhm, $600 million. The bulk of
it is related to the case itself? Related to the
federal?

JACQUES JIHA: Yes, yes, yes.

COUNCIL MEMBER AMPRY-SAMUEL: Okay, so to be in
compliance with the agreement?

JACQUES JIHA: Compliance, yes in compliance with
the case, yes.

COUNCIL MEMBER AMPRY-SAMUEL: Okay.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time expired.
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COUNCIL MEMBER AMPRY-SAMUEL: Okay, I just wanted
that clarification.

JACQUES JIHA: Yes.

COUNCIL MEMBER AMPRY-SAMUEL: Related to the
agreement. Okay.

JACQUES JIHA: Yes.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Thank you. We will go to our
next Council Member.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: We will now hear from Council
Member Rivera followed by Council Member Lander.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time starts now.

COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Good afternoon. Thank
you to all the Chairs for being here. And I just
want to thank you Director. What a year to be taking
over as OMB Director. Uhm, you know the City and
especially the investments we make this year, it is
going to play a huge part in our recovery and I know
we have talked about issues around food access and
housing youth services. And of course supporting our
public hospitals. So, my first two questions are
related to that.

So, the COVID-19 pandemic certainly has led to
huge investments in our public hospital system and

now that there is some light at the end of the tunnel
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with this pandemic, we also need to think about the
survivors of COVID. Many of whom have continuing
symptoms of long haul COVID.

So, H+tH has opened three centers of excellence to
treat outpatient COVID symptoms but can you explain
how the Preliminary Budget will fund the treatment of
long haul COVID systemwide. And my second question
is related to, we can also use these vital services
to create job opportunities and workforce development
by investing in training and apprenticeships such as
the four year painters apprentice with Health +
Hospitals that I support. And I really think it can
be a model for other agencies as well. Do you know
if this program was included in the Preliminary
Budget?

JACQUES JIHA: Okay, let’s start with the H+H.

As you know, H+H has been doing a fantastic job in
terms of recovering financially. And there is strong
management and you know very strong position
financially at this point and time. Despite the
challenges with COVID.

And like we indicated that we open up about three
clinics okay at a cost of about $150 million, $145

million I believe to uhm, for the city. So, we




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE JOINTLY WITH THE SUBCOMMITTEE
ON CAPITAL BUDGET AND THE COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS 122

continue to make investments as necessary, as needed
you know and this is you know again, as I said we
have to look at what are the budget constraints what
we are dealing with.

COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I am so sorry to
interrupt Director but I only have a few seconds
actually. So, do you think the Preliminary Budget is
going to fund a more — a program that deals with long
haul COVID. 1Is that going to be systemwide? Do you
think that there is going to be an opportunity for
programming — I mean for workforce development? And
then before my time runs out, I do want to add a
question about the Commercial Lease of Systems
program. Can you explain why it’s not in the
Preliminary Budget when we went through kind of a
song and dance over $1.5 million, which is the only
city funded legal assistance program.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time expired.

COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: That predominantly helps
minority and women owned businesses and
entrepreneurs. So, if you could just explain the
centers of excellence and whether there is a more
systemwide plan for long haul COVID symptoms. So,

people that are dealing with long haul COVID. And
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then about the workforce development and then just
the CLA program and I just want to thank all the
Chairs for being so gracious with the time and thank
you for answering my questions.

JACQUES JIHA: Yeah, that’s — the commercial
leasing program, this is good news. This is going to
be in the Executive Budget. So, we will address it
at the Executive Budget. With respect to all the
other programs you mentioned as I said, we will all
continue to give you all these things based on needs.
But again, we have to look at as I said the big
picture and we have to look at the context of the
financial situation of the city.

We have a lot of needs but very, very few limited
resources and as I discussed, we will continue to
give you these needs and as needed we will address
them. Like you just said with the commercial, this
would be addressed at the Executive Budget.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay, thank you. Let’s call
our next Council Member please.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: We will now hear from Council
Member Lander followed by Council Member Koo.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time starts now.
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COUNCIL MEMBER LANDER: Thank you Chair.

Director Jiha, it’s good to see you here welcome and
I want to thank you and City Hall for committing to
put money in the Executive Budget to restore the
reckless driver accountability program in the face of
so much reckless driving and we needless deaths that
we have seen.

I want to ask you about two areas. First, the
Department of Education is demanding back tens of
millions of dollars from our schools that they
already spent on the teachers they had to hire for
remote learning and blended learning. Yesterday, DOE
said they would only require 75 percent back instead
of 100 percent back but they spent 100 percent of the
money on teachers.

So, uhm, I guess my first — and I know that’s
mostly schools in low-income communities despite
something the Chancellor said. So, I guess what I
would like is a commitment from you that we are going
to use federal funding to give relief to our schools
and not require them to spend back. I don’t know, it
could be $75 million from low-income schools that

they already spent on teaching.
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It doesn’t matter if they had registered decline.
If they spent it on our teachers, they can’t give it
back to Tweed. So, I would hope the answer is you
will give it back. You know, you will give them
budget relief. 1If not, can I have your commitment
that by the DOE hearing, we are at least going to get
a clear and full list of how much Tweed is demanding
back from every school?

JACQUES JIHA: Uh, uhm, I would have to get back
to you on this. This is an issue that I would have
to discuss with DOE to see exactly what’s going on
but the main point that you make, as long as we have
the necessary resources, we would be more than happy
to revisit that issue. To look at that issue again
one more time. Because if they already spent the
money, there is no way the school could turn the
money back to DOE.

COUNCIL MEMBER LANDER: I am glad that you see it
that way and I know the Mayor basically said as much
to Borough President Brewer in the Preliminary Budget
hearing but the schools are still being asked for it
and they absolutely spend it on teachers. So, at a
minimum like by the DOE hearing to get the full list.

I mean I hear you that you are going to have to see
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how much federal aid before you can commit to giving
budget relief but I think you owe the Council, DOE
owes the Council a full list of what is being
demanded back from every school. The Chancellor said
it might be $100 million if it is 75 percent, that
might only be $75 million but our schools can’t
afford it. They already spent it and then my second
area of questions relates to the attrition program
and the NYPD. It is my understanding that the one
for three replacement program you know covers parks
workers and DFTA and Department of Youth and
Community Development but am I right in understanding
that it does not cover the NYPD. That we are still
replacing every position there and can you give me an
update —

JACQUES JIHA: It doesn’t impact the uniform. It
doesn’t impact the uniform but it impacts the
civilian.

COUNCIL MEMBER LANDER: Tell me what NYPD
headcount is projected to be under this budget
without a hiring attrition program there.

JACQUES JIHA: It’s about $35,000.

COUNCIL MEMBER LANDER: So, just more or less,

where it was before the pandemic?
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JACQUES JIHA: Yes.

COUNCIL MEMBER LANDER: ©No attrition, no
meaningful reductions?

JACQUES JIHA: Oh, they have some significant
attrition and yeah, they had some significant
attrition and we had two classes because well, they
are still behind. They are still way below but in
terms of the numbers, it is roughly around $35,000.

COUNCIL MEMBER LANDER: Roughly $35,000 and
projected to stay there.

JACQUES JIHA: That was the agreement. I believe
that was the agreement to keep it at about 35.

COUNCIL MEMBER LANDER: Okay, I will ask more
questions about this I guess at the NYPD hearing. I
wasn’t clear what the agreement was. Whether it was
possible to actually understand what the numbers were
going to be. It would really be helpful to
understand where they are. I don’t think this
Council to be honest, I don’t think the
administration and the Council were honest with New
Yorkers last year about what the plans were for NYPD
headcount. I think we told stories that were not
true when we adopted the budget and I really would

like to understand what those numbers are and what




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE JOINTLY WITH THE SUBCOMMITTEE
ON CAPITAL BUDGET AND THE COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS 128

the projects for them are. Whatever you think about
the issue, it is our obligation to tell the truth.
So, thank you for that.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Next Council Member please.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: We will now hear from Council
Member Koo followed by Council Member Chin.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time starts now.

COUNCIL MEMBER KOO: Thank you Chair and
Commissioner Jiha. How are you? Thank you.

JACQUES JIHA: Doing very well.

COUNCIL MEMBER KOO: Yeah, good, good. The Mayor
has constantly emphasized the importance of parks to
the city’s recovery. And as the weather gets warmer,
our parks receive a record increases in visitors
again. However, Parks must not prioritize in your
testimony. Can you tell us why?

JAQUES JIHA: Uh, well, as you know we value
Parks because we know their importance to the city’s
landscape. We are working with Parks to evaluate any
requests that they have on a case by case basis okay.
Uhm, we made some cuts to parks but they were not
baselined. 1In otherwise, they will be used sometime

in the Fiscal Year ’22.
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So, again, we have been working with Parks and as
far as we know, to make sure that they have the
appropriate seasonal workers that they need. Okay to
meet their needs this summer. So, uhm, again, that’s
all I can say at this point and time. Again, it’s —
we have to remember that we have to make some
significant decisions because of the financial
situation of the city at the time of the Preliminary
Budget. But uh, uh, as best as we can, even the
limited resources that we have, we have provided
Parks and all these agencies the resources that they
need to function as best as they can.

COUNCIL MEMBER KOO: Okay, thank you. So our
understanding is that there is $1 billion in frozen
capital dollars at OMB for Parks projects. It makes
sense to invest in our Parks now to make them safe
and accessible for New Yorkers.

JACQUES JIHA: You are getting feedback; I can’t
hear you.

COUNCIL MEMBER KOO: Okay, let me start over. I
said, our understanding is that there is $1 billion
in frozen capital dollars at OMB for Parks projects.

JACQUES JIHA: Hmm, hmm.
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COUNCIL MEMBER KOO: It makes sense to invest in
our Parks now to make them safe and accessible for
New Yorkers. Neither OMB nor the Administration
unfreeze those funds.

JACQUES JIHA Uhm, as I said, it’'s — we, we, we
on pause all the capital projects and I believe Parks
is — the Parks project will be I believe I think we
start the Parks sometimes even March 26th okay.

Yeah, so they would have all the capital project
restarted okay on March 26th., They have other you
know projects that we have —

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Time expired.

JACQUES JIHA: That will be un-paused.

COUNCIL MEMBER KOO: I just want — my last
question is like, the system of workers right. Are
seasonal workers for the parks with the proposed
three to one hiring impact New York City Park
workers, seasonal workers?

JACQUES JIHA: Well, we, we, as I said, we are
working with parks okay. We are reviewing their
request for seasonal workers and we believe again as
I said, nothing is guaranteed in life but based on
our review and discussion with parks. We are already

going to provide them with some seasonal workers
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because they are going to need them for the upcoming
spring and summer season.

COUNCIL MEMBER KOO: Yeah but it is important.
People use the Parks more often during the pandemic
than pre-pandemic you know. So, it is critical for
us to keep the Parks clean.

JACQUES JIHA: Sure.

COUNCIL MEMBER KOO: Thank you.

CHAIRPERSON DROMM: Okay, thank you. Thank you
Council Member Koo and we will go to our next Council
Member.

COMMITTEE COUNSEL: We will now hear from Council
Member Chin followed by Council Member Barron.

SERGEANT AT ARMS: Thank you. Thank you to all
the Chairs and